MEMORANDUM

To: Town Board Members

From: Robert B. Koegel

Date: January 13, 2026

Regarding: Joint Hearing to Annex Pittsford Land

To East Rochester
For Meeting On: January 15, 2026

At your meeting held on December 23, 2025, you set a joint public hearing with the
Town/Village of East Rochester to consider the proposed annexation of five parcels of land
totaling 2.3 acres and owned by Northside Salvage, a motor vehicle salvage operation on
Linden Avenue, from Pittsford to East Rochester.

The stated purposes of the proposed annexation are to facilitate Northside’s
redevelopment of its properties, including the expansion of its operations into East Rochester,
and to help rationalize the border between the two municipalities.

Attached to this memo is an agenda for the joint hearing to be held on January 15, 2026,
along with a color aerial photograph of the proposed annexation parcels and surrounding land.
At the time of your last meeting, a complete copy of the petition to initiate the annexation
process was attached to your agenda, along with a cover letter from Northside Salvage’s
counsel. Those documents are attached again. | am also attaching a memo from me to you
commenting on the proposed annexation.

As noted in my prior hearing memo to you dated December 18, 2025, within ninety days
after the hearing is closed, the governing board of each municipality independently must adopt a
resolution and order approving or disapproving the annexation based on findings as to whether
or not it is in the “over-all public interest,” taking into consideration its effect on the territory to be
annexed, both municipalities, and any school, fire, sewer or other special district involved. If one
of the governing boards determines that it is not in the over-all public interest to approve the
proposed annexation, the governing board of the other affected local government may apply to
the Appellate Division of the Supreme Court for a determination of the issue of whether the
proposed annexation is in the over-all public interest.



AGENDA - ANNEXATION PUBLIC HEARING
January 15, 2026 —6:00 P.M.
Joint Meeting of the Town Board of the Town of Pittsford and the Board of Trustees of
the Town/Village of East Rochester at
Town/Village of East Rochester Hall,
317 Main Street,
East Rochester, NY 14445

1.Pledge to the Flag
2. Call the Boards to Order — Mayor Alfieri and Supervisor Smith

3. Mayor Alfieri — Opening of the Public Hearing

a) Presentation of evidence and/or testimony regarding the annexation petition by
petitioners Northside Salvage Yard Inc., and Northsal Holdings LLC

b) Statement by Mayor Alfieri

c) Statement by Supervisor Smith

d) Questions and answers from Board members
e) Public Input/Comments

4.Mayor Alfieri — closing remarks and general summary of how the annexation will move
forward



Jo
s-rd
| ol
. PR« R e
WSS ER SOy

|

474562.41 ft3

— S ; '
- ! “ o
L ‘
544 , )
| ! ' 1954 [T (PO ' "
v L L | A e

\J_i*‘_ 0 — l '4‘[ L{I’:}/

T ; '

N — '“h . o,
Y d Y
; { ToWn'Baun d-; ndemAyve: (CR.1S), L —

6!
87 A
R L ~d KL R W[ Boy "y" * 7

o1 -

ol o s i



MEMORANDUM

TOWN
To: Town Board
From: Robert B. Koegel
Date: January 13, 2026
Regarding: Northside Petition to Annex Linden Ave. property

from Pittsford to East Rochester — RBK comments
For Meeting On: January 15, 2026

Background

Northside Salvage owns and operates an outdoor automobile junk yard and salvage
parts facility on various parcels at or near 954 Linden Avenue in Pittsford. At the time this
business started many years ago, it was allowed under the Pittsford Town zoning code. Later,
the Pittsford zoning code was amended to prohibit an outdoor automobile junk yard or salvage
parts facility anywhere in town. That zoning change meant that while Northside could continue
operating its facility as a pre-existing non-conforming use under the Pittsford zoning code, it
could not expand its operation in Pittsford.

Recently, Northside took control of a 10.7 acre parcel at 962 Linden Avenue in East
Rochester adjoining the Pittsford junk yard to the north. Hoping to expand its business into East
Rochester, Northside approached East Rochester about the possibility of having some of its
Pittsford junk yard parcels annexed from Pittsford to East Rochester. East Rochester then
contacted Pittsford about the proposed annexation, for the stated purposes of accommodating
Northside’s desire to expand its operations by reducing regulatory review from two
municipalities to one and to smooth out the town jagged boundary lines along the northeast
Linden Avenue corridor.

Northside has developed concept plans of its proposed expansion, but it has not
finalized those plans or submitted them to East Rochester or any other regulatory agency for
review or approval. Pittsford officials have inspected the site twice with Northside’s owners and
consultant. In response to Pittsford’s questions about future planned operations, Northside
representatives have said that with expanded operation, there would no longer be outdoor
storage of stacked vehicles visible from the street as there is now and significant vegetative
screening would be installed and maintained along Linden Avenue in front of the business.

Northeast filed its petition with Pittsford and East Rochester to annex five Linden Avenue
parcels totaling 2.3 acres from Pittsford to East Rochester. The statutorily-mandated joint
public hearing before Pittsford and East Rochester is now before us.

One other related matter should be addressed here. Northside owns and operates a
warehouse building at 860 Linden Avenue in connection with its salvage operations. The indoor
operations of that warehouse are an allowable use under Pittsford’s zoning code. However,



Northside has been storing outside hundreds of vehicles at this warehouse location. That
outdoor storage there is not permitted. Northside has represented that with the expansion of
the junk yard into the 962 Linden Avenue parcel, all of the outdoor vehicles and parts at the
warehouse parcel will be moved to the 962 Linden Avenue parcel in East Rochester, and there
will be no future outdoor storage at the warehouse parcel.

Comments

Should the Pittsford Town Board determine that it will approve the requested annexation,
| suggest that it do so based on the following conditions:

1. All vehicles and vehicle parts stored outside at the 860 Linden Avenue premises shall
be removed from those premises within a reasonable time from the commencement of
expanded operations at or near the 962 Linden Avenue parcel, and thereafter, no vehicles or
vehicle parts shall be stored outside at the 860 Linden Avenue premises.

2. Within a reasonable time from the commencement of expanded operations at or near
the 962 Linden Avenue parcel, there shall be no stacking of vehicles at that location visible from
the street.

3. Vegetative screening will be installed and maintained along Linden Avenue in front of
the expanded outdoor automobile junk yard and salvage parts facility.

4. Northside shall comply with General Municipal Law § 136. This state law supplies
minimum operational standards for all automobile junk yards within New York. If a locality
adopts a local law regulating junk yards within its jurisdiction, then that local law controls
operations instead of the state law, except for specific provisions of §136(14) that apply whether
or not the locality adopts a local law. Blesi v. Andruzzi, 173 AD2d 584 (2d Dept. 1991). For
example, East Rochester would need to evaluate plans submitted to assure it complies with the
requirement of § 136(14) to keep junk yard and salvage operations farther than five hundred
feet from “a church, school, hospital, public building or place of public assembly.” See Land Tech
Adjacent Use Map attached herewith.

5. The process of annexation of territory from one municipality to another is an act
subject to SEQRA. Pittsford consents to East Rochester acting as lead agency for the
coordinated SEQRA review with Pittsford for the proposed annexation, and requests East
Rochester to prepare and circulate a short EAF for this unlisted action. Where, as here, “the
annexation proposal lacks a specific project plan that has been officially submitted or a
rezoning proposal that changes the use for which the property may be utilized, the EAF will
necessarily be limited to the annexation itself and its effects.” Matter of City Council of the City
of Watervliet v. Town Bd. of the Town of Colonie, 3 NY3d 508, 520 (2004). A second SEQRA
review will be required if and when a specific junk yard expansion project is proposed and East
Rochester addresses any such specific project by a zoning change and/or the adoption of a
local law regulating the business of the project.

6. My review of the East Rochester Town/Village Code reveals that junkyards are
prohibited everywhere within the territorial limits of East Rochester, except in accordance with
its zoning code. East Rochester Town/Village Code § 114-1. | have not found any East
Rochester zoning provision that allows junkyards. The currently-existing zoning provision that
might be modified to accommodate the establishment of a junkyard is Town/Village Code § 193-



54, entitled “PD Planned Development District,” which includes among its purposes the
“environmentally sound use of the remaining undeveloped land areas within the Town/Village”
and such objectives as to “Provide open space ... Preserve trees ... [and] Provide a
development pattern in harmony with the objectives of the Town/Village Comprehensive Plan.”
Page 40 of the East Rochester Town/Village Comprehensive Plan adopted in February 2025
identifies the “Future Land Use” of the 10.7-acre parcel at 962 Linden Avenue as
“Neighborhood.” Before approving the proposed annexation, the Pittsford Town Board might
want to review East Rochester’s draft local law authorizing Northside’s junk yard expansion
project to ensure that it will be designed and regulated as Northside has described it.



LOCATION MAP LEGEND

NOT TO SCALE LINETYPES SymMBOLS

H

Centerline . Utility Pole
Property Line : Water Gate Valve w3t

Resub. Prop. Line Curb Box pef
Easement Line — ——  Gas Valve »«d
Existing Contour Utility Box O

Proposed Contour
Chain Link Fence gronsfor'\r/lner t v
Wood Fence —w————w————w—w—— urvey Monumen

Guide Rail —o—85 5 o5 o M'Ol“box o
Sign =

Iron pipe/rebar ®

Wire Fence —o——0——

8;?*1?;1: Wires Traffic Control M.H. mm
: Cleanout o

Water Lnje - Y Catch basin H or &

Forcemain —————=»———*—  Fire hydrant X%

Sanitary Sewer Signal span pole [e]
Storm Sewer S Perc hole “]

Electric T " T fF 7 Deep hole ==
Edge of Woods Benchmark @
Floodzone End section [>
Underground Facilities Protective Organization Wetlands Spot elev. x351.00’
Utility Coordinating Commitee. Right—of-Way ~————ROW.————  Light pole 3¢
SN Landscaping & Well @
& SAVE B|G’ CALL Retaining Walls Utility manhole

Silt Fence -0 Storm Sewer O

BEFOF\)E YOU DlG. quingge Flow <-—<—<t—<t— <t— <— Manhole

) < : Disch - Sanitary Sewer
ump Pump Discharge Manhole .

T ”I _800_962_79 62 LINE STYLES Rebar (to be set) O

UR Medicine b Labs . 2 - v \ ~ N - 4 _ ' Feature to be removed LABELS
-

0 UNAUTHORIZED ALTERATION OR ADDITION :
e . , L N, TO A MAP BEARING THE SEAL OF A (Gray Line) Record Map Info. "(R)”

LICGENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER OR isti i . » ”
LAND SURVEYOR IS A VIOLATION OF ARTIGLE Existing Utility Typical Style Typ.

145, SECTION 7209, SUBDIVISION 2 OF (Light Line Weight) To Be Removed ”"TBR”
THE NEW YORK STATE EDUCATION LAW. Proposed Utility o Proposed "oy

(Heavier Line Weight)

SURVEYING & PLANNING P.L.L.C.
1105 RIDGEWAY AVE - ROCHESTER, NY - 14615
PHONE (585) 442-9902 - INFEI@LANDTEE:HNY.E:EIM

LAND/ TE

347 Washington Street North =
Tax Map# 3
139.13-3-3.1 .

333 North Washington St

(nowfformerly) - | PARCEL DATA

Tax ID Municipality Street Address Area

139.61—-3-1 Village of East Rochester 962 West Linden Ave 10.70 acres
139.13—2—1 Town of Pittsford 952 Linden Ave 0.39 acres
139.13—-2-2 Town of Pittsford 954 Linden Ave 0.61 acres
139.13—-2-3 Town of Pittsford 952 Linden Ave 0.50 acres
139.16—1-6 Town of Pittsford 946 Linden Ave 0.33 acres
139.16—1-7 Town of Pittsford 944 Linden Ave 0.50 acres

GENERAL NOTES

1. Total Area: 13.03t acres

2. This project is located in Town Lot xx, Township xx, Range x, of the
Phelps and Gorham Purchase, Town of xxxx, County of Monroe, State of
New York.

. This project is located within Other Areas—Zone X (Areas determined to be

q outside the 0.2% annual chance floodplain) according to Flood Insurance

333 North Washington . ashington , Rate Map Number 36055C0376G, dated August 28, 2008.
Tax Map# ’ }

139.13-1-9.1 now/forn 2 ' 4. Existing utilities were plotted from referenced survey and record maps.
333 North Washington St., LL >

(now/formerly) | N . ‘- . V”_LAGE OF EAST RDBHESTER
ey ' ' L5 ZONING NOTES

REVISIONS

PDD — Planned Development Zoning District
Code Proposed

Min lot area

Min lot depth

Min lot width

Min front setback

Min side setback

Min rear setback

Max lot coverage

DATE:2/25/25

PROJECT NUMBER:

ADJACENT USE MAP | 24305

L I MLARE L T W i Yy ke T R T TOWN OF PITTSFORD ZONING NOTES
II IIIIIIHQE;:. = gé!giaﬁg . . .- ‘ . s '- "y ’ / / | on S s Prop C—2 — Commericial Zoning District

. Code Proposed
’ Min lot area
Min lot depth
Min lot width
Min front setback
Min side setback
Min rear setback

Max lot coverage

By AN

LINDEN AVENUE

BLAKE TRACT, VILLAGE OF EAST ROCHESTER,
COUNTY OF MONROE, STATE OF NEW YORK

NORTHSIDE U PICK

W:\PROJECTS\2024\24305 - Linden Avenue #962\CAD\24305 West Linden Ave 962 Pittsford.dwg, 1:1



%

PETITION FOR THE ANNEXATION OF TERRITORY FROM THE TOWN OF
PITTSFORD, COUNTY OF MONROE, STATE OF NEW YORK, TO THE
TOWN/VILLAGE OF EAST ROCHESTER, COUNTY OF MONROE, STATE OF NEW
YORK

TO THE TOWN BOARD OF THE TOWN OF PITTSFORD, COUNTY OF MONROE, NEW
YORK:

TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN/VILLAGE OF EAST ROCHESTER,
COUNTY OF MONROE, NEW YORK:

The undersigned, John P. Sebastian, in his capacity as a shareholder, director and officer of
Northside Salvage Yard Inc., a corporation formed under the laws of the State of New York, and
member and manager of Northsal Holdings LLC, a limited liability company formed under the
laws of the State of New York (collectively, “Northside Salvage”), hereby petitions the Town
Board of the Town of Pittsford (“Town Board”), County of Monroe, New York and the Board of
Trustees of the Town/Village of East Rochester, County of Monroe, New York, as follows:

1. Northside Salvage respectfully petitions and requests that certain territory now
situated in the Town of Pittsford more particularly described on Exhibit A, attached hereto and
made a part of this petition, be annexed to the Town/Village of East Rochester, pursuant to the
provisions of New York General Municipal Law Article 17.

2. The real property described on said Exhibit A annexed hereto is hereinafter
referred to the “Territory.” The subject properties comprising the Territory are further identified
by the following addresses and tax parcel identification numbers on the official tax map of the
Town of Pittsford, County of Monroe:

Owner Address Tax Parcel No.
Northside Salvage Yard Inc. 956 Linden Ave 139.13-2-3

Northside Salvage Yard Inc. 954 Linden Ave 139.13-2-2

Northside Salvage Yard Inc. 952 Linden Ave 139.13-2-1

Northsal Holdings LL.C 946 Linden Ave 138.16-1-6

Northsal Holdings LL.C 944 Linden Ave 138.16-1-7 '},7&

Rl
3. The Territory which it is herein described and proposed to be annexed to the

Town/Village of East Rochester is presently located in the Town of Pittsford and adjoins the
territory of the Town/Village of East Rochester.

4. The Territory is further described in the survey prepared by LandTech Surveying
& Planning P.L.L.C. (Project No. 24305) dated December 10, 2025, annexed hereto and made
part hereof as Exhibit B.

5. Northside Salvage as the petitioner herein is the owner of 100% of the assessed
valuation of the Territory, as shown on the last preceding assessment role of the Town of
Pittsford.



~ ?
( AN ( N

6. There are no inhabitants in the Territory.

7. Annexed hereto as Exhibit C and filed herewith is a certificate signed by the
Assessor of the Town of Pittsford responsible for the preparation of the last preceding
assessment role of the Town of Pittsford certifying that Northside Salvage (the petitioner) is the
owner of 100% of the assessed valuation of the Territory now situated in the Town of Pittsford,
as shown on the last preceding assessment role of the Town of Pittsford.

8. Because there are no persons residing in the Territory proposed to be annexed to
the Town/Village of East Rochester, and Northside Salvage is the single and sole owner of 100%
of the assessed valuation of the Territory, an election is not required to effectuate the public
interest intended by General Municipal Law Section 713, and Article IX, Section 1 of the New
York State Constitution.

9. Based upon the foregoing, it is respectfully submitted that this annexation is not
only supported by the laws of the State of New York, but is beneficial to both the Town of
Pittsford and the Town/Village of East Rochester, as demonstrated by the letter of support
provided by the Town/Village of East Rochester Administrator Martin G. D’ Ambrose, annexed
hereto as Exhibit D.

10.  The undersigned petitioner is authorized to make this Petition on behalf of
Northside Salvage as (a) a shareholder, director and officer of Northside Salvage Yard Inc. and
(b) a member and manager of Northsal Holdings LLC. True and correct copies of the articles of
incorporation and by-laws of Northside Salvage Yard Inc., along with a certificate evidencing
the current shareholders, directors and officers evidencing the same are annexed hereto as
Exhibit E. The articles of organization and operating agreement of Northsal Holdings LLC
evidencing the same are annexed hereto as Exhibit F.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned petitioner has caused this petition to be
executed by its duly authorized officer on this g__ day of December, 2025.

[Signature page follows]



3

NORTHSIDE SALVAGE YARD INC.

Ry

Name+/John P. Sebabtian
Tj Shareholder, Director and Officer

NORTHSAL HOLDINGS LLC




CERTIFICATION

STATE OF NEW YORK )
) SS.:

COUNTY OF MONROE )

I, Patrick Sebastian, being duly sworn says:

I reside at 2.5 Braddonl Fill R L in the £ 14y of Fa, frper 4 in the State of New
York. I know John Sebastian, the person whose name is subscribed to the above Petition having
his 51gnatures and that said John Sebastian subscribed his name to the above Petition in my

Pt Sfme

Name: Patrick Sebastian

Sworn to before me
thisf _ day of December, 2025

Wm%,uo

cﬂu‘y Public

 MOLYNIEP
UTRY PUBLIC, STATE OF [y
No 01NI60BBS4S
e UALIFED 1 NONROE Cour-
| EOMMIBSION RS wpoy - T



s s

EXHIBIT A

DESCRIPTION OF LANDS TO BE ANNEXED TO THE TOWN/VILLAGE OF EAST
ROCHESTER

Tax Parcels Tax # 138.16-1-6 and Tax # 138.16-1-7

All that tract or parcel of land situated in part of Town Lot 1, Township 12, Range 5, Town of
Pittsford, County of Monroe, State of New York, and more particularly described as follows:

Beginning at a point on the north right-of-way line of Linden Avenue (49.5 feet wide; County
Road 15), said point being 592+ feet west of the intersection of the north right-of-way line of
Linden Avenue and the west right-of-way line of Washington Street; said point also being the
southeast corner of the lands of 330 ER LLC (940-942 Linden Avenue), as recorded in Liber
12981 of Deeds at Page 143;

1. Thence, northerly along a line bearing North 00°03'35"” West, a distance of 330 feet to a
point;

- 2. Thence, easterly along a line bearing South 84°3425” East, a distance of 100.00 feet to a
point;

3. Thence, southerly along a line bearing South 00°03'35"” East, a distance of 330.00 feet to a
point on the north right-of-way line of Linden Avenue;

4. Thence, westerly along the said north right-of-way line of Linden Avenue, bearing North
84°34'25" West, a distance of 190.00 feet to the point of beginning.

Intending to describe a 0.84+ acre parcel of land, encompassing the following properties:

946 Linden Ave Tax # 138.16-1-6 0.3 acres Town of Pittsford
944 Linden Ave Tax # 138.16-1-7 0.5 acres Town of Pittsford

As shown on a concept plan prepared by LandTech Surveying and Planning, PLLC, dated
February 25, 2025 (Project No. 24305).



& &

EXHIBIT A (continued)

DESCRIPTION OF LANDS TO BE ANNEXED TO THE TOWN/VILLAGE OF EAST
ROCHESTER

Tax Parcels Tax # 138.16-1-1, Tax # 138.16-1-2, Tax # 138.16-1-3

All that tract or parcel of land situated in part of Town Lot 1, Township 12, Range 5, Town of
Pittsford, County of Monroe, State of New York, and more particularly described as follows:

Beginning at a point on the north right-of-way line of Linden Avenue (49.5 feet wide; County
Road 15), said point being 432+ feet west of the intersection of the north right-of-way line of
Linden Avenue and the west right-of-way line of Washington Street; said point also being the
southwest corner of the lands of Northside Salvage Yd Inc. (952 Linden Avenue), as recorded in
Liber 6196 of Deeds at Page 245;

1. Thence, northerly along a line bearing North 00°03'35” West, a distance of 330.00 feet to
a point;

2. Thence, easterly along a line bearing South 84°34'25" East, a distance of 198.00 feet to a
point;

3. Thence, southerly along a line bearing South 00°03'35” East, a distance of 330.00 feet to
a point on the north right-of-way line of Linden Avenue;

4. Thence, westerly along the said north right-of-way line of Linden Avenue, bearing North
84°34'25" West, a distance of 198.00 feet to the point of beginning.

Intending to describe a 2.5+ acre parcel of land, encompassing the following properties:

952 Linden Ave Tax # 139.13-2-1 0.4 acres Town of Pittsford
954 Linden Ave Tax # 139.13-2-2 0.6 acres Town of Pittsford
956 Linden Ave Tax # 139.13-2-3 0.5 acres Town of Pittsford

As shown on a concept plan prepared by LandTech Surveying and Planning, PLLC, dated
February 25, 2025 (Project No. 24305).



EXHIBIT B

COPY OF SURVEY SHOWING AREA TO BE ANNEXED



11 "BMpPIOISIIG 296 AV UIPUI 153M SOEPZ\OVYI\ZI6H ANUIAY UIPULT - SOEFZAVZO\S1IINOUVM

L 40 | 133HS
X s
- =4
i
142z
d 3 Z %
&
Z ;70 Q :
0 2= m g T <
F1g N r
nva 9 - N _|
0 |pe: Y04S0 40 i -
2] mm__.unv ~ e H3483N w2 mw_,_
>3 [ afz
Z R5-< M Tig 23 1
o lgitm m B gL
= |23z O @y £0% 3
4 [8iE o = EN T
= [zRC K ES EEd
O |gcem alg < R g
Z 2o m_m.. [— 2
E ommoe z
o Tiolun ]
T — =+ ooy el S8
n vy wezmw - - i~ [ |
a ..__m m 2 S3LON SNINDZ QaOsS1ild 40 NMOL ! siare i
HETH e : —
/fb( HEE i iﬂ.«iv , agim
o|¥ , ;
o [ £ | 0
Og|=|z]|s
HHHE
3|z 39vy
S OTEE T Pt
>
~ LR
” S310N SNINDZ .
: HILSIHDON 1Sv3 40 ITVTIA
pil < Chovgs apw Aan | aaps g Rl ae oy mEd e
miZ .
<7 IR
|- L3 ey v ox
o el
gf- bl i An o mey my o tia g
z|. EEIPER T T SR e L S
o 1 ' zZ z
L 0o
! S3LON IvdINISg A
T D
x m 3
L 33
oy
3 R .
Ao o by lE 2z .
viva 3aavd /
0S=,1 :3vag R - ;
N =
e L 3
L t m
¥ & J :
4
Nm
. >
n
~ . N
p i 'z
~
~ - L
W— s - o
/Hch “ el DRI, ~ .
“n_n atC “ M — — — T o Ao oS s B3I | ~ 3 -
e e e LN
Zom taea ) 8 o e e osery = J
& w m BFTALE INFT [— — =1
og < B
af LA 43
vmm v u><zmm
8= - I )
Sre PP DI I 3
am .
o O
Nz
3
z ~
L -
&8z
>3 z
220
o
z
a Awn_ - N
: 4 :
i 3 S
ao- EIaaiInT 37vaS 0L 1ON
=0 aN3gan dviN NOILV3OT]



EXHIBIT C

ASSESSOR’S CERTIFICATION

&



(" (-

CERTIFICATION

STATE OF NEW YORK )
) SS.:
COUNTY OF MONROE )

I, Stephen H. Robson, the Assessor of the Town of Pittsford, County of Monroe, New
York (the “Town”), do hereby certify as follows:

1) I am the duly appointed Assessor for the Town and was the person responsible for
the preparation of the assessment roll for the year 2025.

2) That the real property described in Exhibit A attached to the annexed Petition is
situated in the said Town. Said real property is comprised of five parcels assessed on the tax roll
of the Town for the year 2025 according to the corresponding assessed valuation and tax parcel
numbers as follows:

Owner Address Assessed Valuation Tax Parcel No.
Northside Salvage Yard Inc. 956 Linden Ave $123,900.00 139.13-2-3
Northside Salvage Yard Inc. 954 Linden Ave $65,300.00 139.13-2-2
Northside Salvage Yard Inc. 952 Linden Ave $17,900.00 139.13-2-1
Northsal Holdings LL.C 946 Linden Ave $18,900.00 138.16-1-6
Northsal Holdings LL.C 944 Linden Ave $22,400.00 138.16-1-7

3) That the petitioners, Northside Salvage Yard Inc. and Northsal Holdings LLC, are
the sole owners of said real property, and therefore, own 100% of the assessed valuation of the
real property described in the said annexed Petition which is now situated in the Town, and
which is sought to be annexed to the Town/Village of East Rochester, County of Monroe,

New York.

Datec\i: Pittsford, New York
December /B, 2025

A?sessor, Town of Pittsford

County of Monroe, New York



EXHIBIT D

LETTER OF SUPPORT



_ ” \ BOARD OF TRUSTEES
TOWI]/ Vl“a ge Of Ted Conners
East Rochester Kelley Swagler

ark McDermott
317 MAIN STREET, SUITE 2000 Chad M. Woodworth
EAST ROCHESTER, NEW YORK 14445 ADMINISTRATOR
585-586-3553 - Fax: 585-419-8282 Martin G. D'Ambrose
www.eastrochester.org CLERK TREASURER

Mayor — John R. Alfieri Shelby E. Simmons

DEPUTY CLERK
Sandra Consiglio

July 01, 2025

The Honorable William A. Smith Jr,,
Town of Pittsford

11 S. Main Street

Pittsford, NY 14564

Dear Supervisor Smith,

I am writing on behalf of the Mayor Alfieri and the Town/Village Board of East Rochester in regards
to the potential annexation of the Sebastian properties from the Town of Pittsford to the Town/Village
of East Rochester. At the conclusion of a presentation made by LandTech on behalf of owner John
Sebastian which took place at the June 12" business meeting a motion was made by Trustee Mark
McDermott, seconded by Trustee Kelley Swagler and unanimously approved to provide the Town of
Pittsford with a letter of support.

The Board agreed after hearing the presentation that a sound case was made to assist the owner with
the redevelopment of this area on the northside of East Rochester as well as to clean up the boarders
between our two communities. In addition, the approval process would be streamlined by having one
governmental board vs. two. Please let us know if you are in agreement to proceed and when a joint
public hearing can be scheduled. We will ask our municipal attorney, Dan Bryson to work with your
legal counsel to iron out the details.

Given the importance of this redevelopment, we hope you will give this request your full
consideration. If you or your staff have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at (585)
586-3553 or by email at mdambrose(@eastrochesterny.gov.

Sincerely,

TOWN/VILLAGE OF EA}ST ROCHESTER

artin G. D’A l;rose
Administrator

Ce. John R. Alfieri, Mayor
Board of Trustees
Sandi Consiglio, Deputy Clerk/Treasurer
Dan Bryson, Attorney

EAST ROCHESTER, NEW YORK . .. “Home of the 1966 Senior Little League World Champions”



a o

EXHIBIT E
NORTHSIDE SALVAGE YARD INC.

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION, BY-LAWS AND CERTIFICATE



C

.

RECEIPT OF SECRETARY OF STATE

ee BB (00708) WSL6S+HIS "65¢ WIOT
............................................. Ni%
91e1q Jo jusunjaeds
................ ¢ pungox S0JUOH  Ajunos

o.a....o.w....'f% MQPOM—.L

s A ojeayTIe]
e £d0o payrIeD

o xeL.

o SunLy

00°0s ¢ Ay O o O D K 1 SMO[{oF 52 pred xe} Jo/pue seaq

.hnccu Po[y useq sBY

................................................... .QQH.uhawmwanwmmE.mzfoz g0
............................................................................... T 218013480
0819 *3%J0% ney ‘ae3seyooy 3s

X 4 I58E

¢q00aqg TeTOXem0) 350M TIT

65 61 ‘Y2 Iequedsq ‘ioutey 340q0y

‘X N ‘Aueqry Alnddd BALLADEXA g
: ANOLS 'O LYIaOM

AYYLINDAS Alndda qum rmo azmzaﬁmmm ALVLS 40 AUYIZYOAS

BIAYA "N WYHYMdEY M.mo.w Bmz rvHo m&«&m NONIS "3 ANITTONMVD ‘SHW



ROBERT WEINER
ATTORNEY -AT -LAW
111 WEST COMMERCIAL ST,
EAST ROCHESTER, N. Y.

‘ Salvage Yard, Ihc.".

~ assets and to assume or otherwiase provide for all or any of the

~ ~

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
NORTHSIDE SAggAGE YARD, INC.
(Pursuant ta Article Two of the Stock Corporation Law)
WE, THE UNDERSIGNED, desiring to form a corporation pursuant
to Article Two of the Stock Corporation Law of the State of New
York, do hereby make, subscribe and acknowledge this certificate

for that purpoae, as follows:

First:~The name of the proposed corporation is "Northside

Second:-~The purposes for which this corporation is formed,
are as follows, to wit:-To engage in the business of buying,
selling and otherwise dealing in all types of scrap metal, scrap
paper and scrap products, including the buying, selling and
disposing of scrap metal and scrap products of all kinds wherever
derived from, including, but not limited to, metal scrap, paper
scrap, cloth scrap and all and every kind and nature of material
sCrap.

To acquire by purchase or otherwise the business of any
person, firm, association, or corporation engaged in any business
which this corporation is authorized to carry on and in connection

therewith to acquire the goodwill and all or any part of the

liabilities of the owner of any such buainess.

To engage in any business allied to the purposes for which
this corporation is formed.

To take, buy, exchange, lease or otherwise acquire real
estate and any interest or right therein, and to hold, own,
operate, control, maintain, manage and develop the same and to
construct, maintain, slter, manage and control directly or
through ownership of stock in any other corporation any and all
kinds of buildings, stores, offices, warehouses, mills, shops,
factories, machinery and plants, and any and all other structures
and erections which may at any time be necesgsary, useful or
advantageous for the purposes of this corporation.

To sell, assign and transfer, convey, lease, or otherwise




ROBERT WEINER
ATTORNEY - AT-LAW
111 WEST COMMERCIAL 5T,
EAST ROCHESTER, M. Y.

"~ with every kind of goods, wares and merchandise, and every kind

O &

-2 -

alienate or dispose of, and to mortgage or otherwise encumber the
lands, buildings, real and personal property of the corporation
wherever aituated, and any and all legal andeguitable interests
therein.

To purchase, sell, lease, manufacture, deal in and deal

of personal property, including patents and patent rights,
chattels, easements, privileges and franchises which may lawfully
be purchased, sold, producad or dealt in by corporations formed
under Article Two of the Stock Corporation Law of the State of
New York.

To purchase, acquire, hold and dispose of the stocks, bonds
and other evidences of indebtedness of any corporation, domestic
or foreign, and to issue in exchange therefor its stocks, bonds
or other obligations, and to exercise in respect thereof all the
rights, powers and privilegea of individual owners, including the
right to vote thereon; and to aid in any manner permitted by
law any corporation of which any bonds or other securities or
evidences of indebtedness or sgtocks are held by this corporation,
and to do any acta or things designed to prbtect, preserve,
improve or enhance the value of any such bondas or other securitief
or evidence of indebtedness or stock.

The foregoing and following clauses shall be construed as
objects and powers in furtherance and not in limitation of the
general powers conferred by the laws of the State of New York;
and it is hereby expreasly provided that the foregoing and
following enumeration of specific powers shall not be held to
1limit or restrict in any manner the powers of this corporation,
and that this corporation may do all and everything necessary,
suitable or proper for the accomplishment of any of the purposes
or objects hereinabove enumerated either alone or in assoclation
with other c¢orporations, firms, or individuals, to the same
extent and as fully as individuals might or could do aa

principals, agents, contractors or otherwise.




ROBERT WEINER
ATTORNEY-AT-LAW
111 WEST COMMERCIAL 5T.
EAST ROCHESTER, N. Y.

- F

Nothing in this certificate contained, however, shall
authorize the corporation to carry on any businesa or exerclse
any powers in any state or country which a similar corporatioen
organized under the laws of such state or country could not
carry osn or exercisej; or té engage within or without the State
of New York in the business of a lighting or a transportation
corporation, or in the common carrier busineas, or to issue
bills, anotes or other evidence of debt for circulation as money.

Third:-The amount of the capital stock shall be two
hundred (200) shares, all of which are to be without par value,

The capital of the corporation shall be at least equal

to the sum of the aggregate par value of all issued shares

having par value, plus the ageregate amount of consideration

received by the corporation for the issuance of shares without
par value, plus such amounts as from time Lo time, by resolution
of the board of directors, may be transferred thereto.
Fourthi:-The office of the corporation is to be located in
the Town of Pittsford, County of Meonroe, State of New York.
The addreas to which the Secretary of State shall mail a copy of
any process against the corporation which may be served upon him
pursuant to law is 954 Linden Avenue, East Rochester, New York.
Fifthi-The duration of said corporation shall be perpetual.
Sixth:-The numbers of directors shall be not less than
three nor nore than ten.

Seventh:~The names and the post-office addresses of the
directors until the first annual meeting of the gtockholders,
are as follows:

John Sebastian, 712 Grant Street, Last Rochester, New York
Pauline Sebastian, 712 Grant Street, East Rochester, New York
Patsy Sebastian, 514 Linden Avenue, Rochester 10, New York
Gloria Sebastian, 514 Linden Avenue, Rochester, 10, New York
Eighth:~The names and post-office addresses of the sub-
seribers of this certificate of incorperation and a astatement of

the numbers of shares which each agrees to take in the corporatioc

are as follows:




ROBERT WEINER
ATTORNEY - AT-LAW
117 WEST COMMERCIAL ST.
EAST ROCHESTER, N. Y.

O e

-4 -

John Sebastian, 712 Grant St., East Rochester, N.Y. - 1 share
Pauline Sebastian, 712 Grant St,, East Rocheater, N.Y. -~ 1 share
Patgy Sebasgtian, 514 Linden Ave., Rochester 10, N.Y. ~ 1 share
Gloria Sebastian, 514 Linden Ave., Rochester 10, N.Y. - 1 share

Ninth:-The Secretary of State 1is designated as the agent
of the Corporation upon whom process in any action or proceeding
againgt it may be served within the State of New York.

Tentht-All of the subsgceribers of this certificate are of
full age, and that at least two thirds of them are citizens of
the United States, and that at least one of them is a resident
of the State of New York and at least one of the persons named
as a director is a citizen of the United States and a resident
of the State of New York.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have made, subscribed and acknowleded

this certificate this // Zz:lay of December, 1959,

égiin J.. / /ii/imﬂ,z%, : L.S,

)

STATE OF NEW 16;;/;’”

COUNTY OF MONROE ) 2°%°

On this // day of December, 1959, before me personally
came JOHN SEBASTIAN, PAULIRE SEBASTIAN, PATSY SEBASTIAN and
GLORTIA SEBASTTIAN, to me known to be the persons described in and

who executed the foregoing certificate of incorporation and they

thereupon severally duly acknowledged to me

fchat they executed

the sane,

7] 7

s ROBERT WEINER

NOTARY PUBLIC, State of N, Y., Monrde County
My Commission Expires Maroh 38 $9.20

od




BY-LAWS
OF

NORTHSIDE SALVAGE YARD, INC.

OFFICES.
1. The principal office of the corporation shall be in
Village
the txityx of East Rochester , County of Momroe

State of New York,

2. The corporation may also have offices at such other
places as the board of directors may from time to time deter-
mine or the business of the corporation may require.

MEETINGS OF STOCKHOLDERS.,

3. All meetings of the stockholders shall be held at the
prineipal office of the corporation or at such place within
the State of New York as the board of directors shall authorize.

4, The annual meeting of the stockholders of the cor-
poration, shall be held on the 2nd day of January
at 2:30 o'elock P.M. in each year if not a legal holiday,
and, if a legal holiday, then on the next business day following
at the same hour, when they shall elect a board of directors
and transact such other business as may properly come hefore
the meeting.

5. Written notice of every meeting of stockholders,
stating the purpose or purposes for which the meeting is
called, the time when and the place within the State of New
York where it is to be held, shall be served, either per-

sonally or by mail, upon each stockholder entitled to vote at

By-Liaws A



e | ("

such meeting and upon each stockholder of record who, by
reason of any action proposed at such meeting, would be en=
titled to have his stock appraised if such action were taken,
not less than iten nor more than forty days before the meeting.
1f mailed, such notice shall be directed to a stockholder at
his address as it shall appear on the books of the corporation
unless he shall have filed with the secretary of the corpora-
tion a written request that notices intended for him be mailed
to some other address, in which case it shall be mailed to the
address designated in such request. Notice of g1l meetings
may be waived by any stockholder by written waiver or by per-
sonal attendance thereat.

6. Special meetings of the stockholders for any purpose

or purposes, uunless otherwise prescribed by statute or b? the
certificate of incerporation, may be called by resolution of
the board of directors or by the president, and shall be
called by the president or secretary at the request in writing
of a majority of the board of directors or at the request in
writing by stockholders owning a majority in amount of the
capital stock of the corporation issued and outstanding.
Such request shall state the purpose or purposes of the
proposed meeting. The presideni may, in his discretion, call
a special meeting of stockholders upon ten days' notice.

7. Business transacted at all special meetings shall be

confined to the purposes stated in the notice of meeting.

By-Laws B



. .

'8, The holders of a majority of ihe stoeck issued and
outstanding and entitled to vote thereal, present in person or
represented by proxy, shall be requisite and shall constitute
a quorum at all meetings of the stockholders for the trans-
action of business except as otherwise provided by statute or
by the certificate of incorporation or by these by-laws.

9. If a quorum shall not be present or represented, the
stockholders entitled to vote thereat, present in person or
represented by proxy, shall have power to adjourn the meeting
from time to time, without notice other than announcement at
the meeting, until a quorum shall be present or represented.
At such adjourned meeting ét which a quorum shall be present
or represented any business may be transacted which might have
been transacted at the meeting as originally notified.

10. When a quorum is present or represented at any meet-
ing, the vote of the holders of a majority of the stock having
voting power present in person or represented by proxy shall
decide any question brought before such meeting, unless the
question is one upon which by express provision of the
statutes or of the certificate of incorporation or of these
by-laws, a different vote is required in whi&h case such
express provision shall govern and control the decision of

such question.

By-Laws C



e o

11, Each stockholder of record having the right to vote
shall be entitled at every meeting of the stockholders of the
corporation to one vote for each share of stock having voting
power standing in the name of such stockholder on the books of
the corporation, and such votes may be cast either in person
or by written proxy.

12. Every proxy must be executed in writing by the
stockholder or by his duly authorized attorney. No proxy
shall be valid after the expiration of eleven months from the
date of its execution unless it shall have specified therein
its duration. Every proxy shall be revocable at the pleasure
of the person executing it or of his personal representatives
or assigns.

DIRECTORS

13. The board of directors shall consist of not less than
dggggfoﬁgf‘;%:Fengggnng%%e stockholders of the corpbration,
all of whom shall be of full age and at least one of whom
shall be a citizen of the United States and a resident of the
State of New York. They shall be elected at the annual
meeting of the stockholders and each director shall be elected
to serve for one year and until his successor shall be elected
and shall qualify.

14. If the office of any director or directors becomes
vacant for any reason, the directors in office may choose a
successor or successors who shall hold office for the unexpired
term in respect to which such vacancy occurred or until the
next election of directors, or any vacancy may be £illed by the
stockholders at any meeting thereof. Any director may be
removed either with or without cause, at any time, by vote of

the stockholders at any meeting called for the purpose.

By-Laws D



ot

o ~

15. The business of this corporation shall be managed by
its board of directors which may exercise all such powers of
the corporation and do all such lawful acts and things as are
not by statute or by the certificate of incorporation or by
these by-laws required to be exercised or done by the stock-

holders.
MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

16, The directors may hold their meetings at the office
of the corporation, or at such other places, either within or
without the State of New York, as they may from time to time

determine.

17. Regular meetings of the board may be held without
notice at such time and place as shall from time to time be

determined by resolution of the board.

18. Special meetings of the board may be called by the
president on five days' notice to each director either per-
sonally or by mail or by wire; special meetings shall be
called by the president or secretary in a like manner on the
written request of two directors. Notice of meeting may be
waived by any director by written waiver or by personal
attendance thereat.

19, At any meeting at which every member of the board of
directors shall be present, though held without notice, any
pusiness may be transacted which might have been transacted

if the meeting.had been duly called.

By=-Laws E



o 5

20. At all meetings of the board the presence of a ma-
jority of the entire number of directors shall be necessary to
constitute a gquorum and sufficient for the transaction of
business.

21, Any act of a majority present at a meeting, at which
there is a gquorum, shall be the act of the board of directors,
except as may be otherwise specifically provided by statute
or by the certificate of incorporation or by these by-laws.

22, If a quorum shall not be present at any meeting of
directors the directors present thereat may adjourn the
meeting from time to time, without notice other than announge-
ment at the meeting, until a quorum shall be present.

WAIVER OF NOTICE.

23. Whenover by statute, the provisions of the certi-
Picate of incorporation or these by-laws, the stockholders or
the board of directors are authorized to teke any action after
notice, such notice may be waived, in writing, before or after
the holding of the meeting, by the person or persons entitled
to such notice, or, in the case of a stockholder, by his

attorney thereunto authorized.

By-Laws F



.

i

OFFICERS.

24. The officers of the corporation shall be a presi-
dent, a vice-president, a secretary and a treasurer. Any
officer may hold more than one office.

25. The directors, immediately after each annual meeting
of stockholders, shall elect from their number a president
and shall also choose a vice-president, a secretary and a
treasurer who need not be members of the board.

26. The board may appoint such other officers, agenis
and employees as it shall deem necessary who shall have such
authority and shall perform such duties as from time to time
shall be prescribed by the board.

27. The salaries of all officers of the corporation
shall be fixed by the board of directors.

28. The officers of the corporation shall hold office
for one vear and until their successors are chosen and qualify
in their stead. Any officer elected or appointed by the board
of directors may be removed at any time by the affirmative
vote of a majority of the directors. If the office of any
officer becomes vacant for any reason, the vacancy shall be
£illed by the board of directors.

THE PRESIDENT.

29. The president shall be the executive officer of the
corporation; he shall preside at all meetings of the stock=
holders and directors; he shall have the management of the
business of the corporation and shall see that all orders and

resolutions of the board are carried into effect.

By-Laws G



( (s

VICE-PRESIDENT.

30. The vice-president in the absence or disability of
the president shall perform the duties and exercise the powers
of the president and shall perform such other duties as the

board of directors shall prescribe.

THE SECRETARY.

31, The secretary shall attend all sessions of the board
and all meetings of the stockholders and record all votes and
the minutes of all proceedings in a book to be kept for that
purpose. He shall give or cause to be given notice of all
meetings of stockholders and special meetings of the board of
directors and shall perform such other duties as may be pre-
seribed by the board of directors. He shall keep in safe cus-
tody the seal of the corporation and affix it to any instru-
ment when authorized by the board of directors.

THE TREASURER.

39. The treasurer shall have the custody of the cor-
porate funds and securities and shall keep full and accurate
accounts of receipts and disbursements in books belonging to
the corporation and shall deposit all moneys and other valu=-
able effects in the name and to the credit of the corporation
in such depositories as may be designated by the board of
directors. He shall disburse the funds of thé corporation as
may be ordered by the board, taking proper vouchers for such
disbursements, and shall render to the president and directors

at the regular meetings of the board, or whenever they may

By-Laws H



(/“} (/“\

require it, an account of all his transactions as treasurer
and of the financial condition of the corporation.

33. He shall, if required by the board, give the cor-
poration a bond in such sum or sums and with such surety or
sureties as shall be satisfactory to the board, conditioned
upon the faithful performance of his duties and for the
restoration to the corporation in case of his death, resigna-
tion, retirement or removal from office of all books, papers,
vouchers, money and other property of whatever kind in his
possession, or under his control belonging to the corporation.

CERTIFICATES OF STOCK.

34. The certificates of stock of the corporation shall
be numbered and entered in the books of the corporation as
they are issued. They shall exhibit the holder's name and the
number of shares and shall be signed by the president or a
vice-president and the treasurer or the secretary and shall
bear the corporate seal.

LOST CERTIFICATES.

35. The board of directors may direect a new certificate
or certificates to be issued in place of any certificate or
certificates theretofore issued by the corporation, alleged to
have been lost or destroyed, upon the making of an afridavit
of that fact by the person claiming the certificate of stock
to be lost or destroyed. When authorizing such issue of a new
certificate or certificates, the board of directors may, in

its discretion and as a condition precedent to the issuance

By-Laws I



s .

thereof, require the owner of such lost or destroyed certi-
figate or certificates, or his legal representative, to adver-
tise the same in such manner as it shall require and/or give
the corporation a bond in such sum and with such surety or
sureties as it may direct as indemnity against any claim that
may be made against the corporation with respect to the certi-
ficate alleged to have been lost or destroved.

TRANSFERS OF STOCK.

35, Upon surrender to the corporation or the transfer
agent of the corporation of a certificate of stock duly en-~
dorsed or accompanied by proper evidence of succession, as~
signment or authority to transfer, it shall be the duty of the
corporation to issue a new certificate to the person entitled
thereto, and cancel the old certificate; every such transfer
of stock shall be entered on the stock book of the corporation
which shall be kept at its principal office. No transfer of
stock shall be made within ten days next preceding the annual
meeting of stockholders.

37. The corporation shall be entitled to treat the
holder of record of any share or shares of stock as the holder
in fact thereof and, accordingly, shall not be bound to recoge
nize any equitable or other claim to or interest in such share
on the part of any other person whether or not it shall have
express or other notice thereof, excepj as expressly provided

by the laws of New York.

By=Laws J



. \
( A (\ )

DIVIDENDS.

38, Dividends upon the capital stock of the corporation,
subject to any provisions of the certificate of incorporation
relating thereto may be declared by the board of directors at
any regular or special meeting, pursuant to law,

39, Before payment of any dividend, there may be set
aside out of the net profits of the corporation available for
dividends such sum or sums as the directors from time to time
in their absolute discretion think proper as a reserve fund to
meet contingencies, or for equalizing dividends, or for re-
pairing or maintaining any propérty of the corporation, or for
such other purpose as the directors shall think conducive to
the interests of the corporation, and the directors may modify
or abolish any such reserve in the manner in which it was
created.

SEAL

40, The seal of the corporation shall be as follows: the
name of the corporation, the year of its organization and the
words "Corporate Seal, New York." The seal may be used by
causing it to be impressed directly on the instrument or writ=
ing to be sealed, or upon adhesive substance affixed thereto.
The seal on any corporate obligation for the payment of money

may be a facsimile, engraved or printed.

By-Laws K



CHECKS
41. A1l checks or demands for money and notes of the
corporation shall be signed by such officer or officers or
such other person or persons as the board of directors may

from time to time designate.

FISCAL YEAR

42, The Piscal year shall begin the first day of
January in each year.
AMENDMENTS
‘ 43. These by-laws may be amended, altered or added to

by the vote of the Board of Directors of this corporation at

any regular meeting of said Board, or at a special meeting of

Directors called for that purpose provided a quorum of the

Directors as provided by law and by the Certificate of Incor=

poration, are present at such regular or special meeting.

These by-laws, and any amendments thereto and new by-laws

added by the directors may be amended, altered or roplaced by

the stockholders at any annual ‘or special meeting of the

stockholders.

By-Laws L



CERTIFICATE
: OF
NORTHSIDE SALVAGE YARD INC.

The undersigned hereby certifies that he is the President of Northside Salvage Yard Inc.,
a New York corporation (“Corporation”), and further certifies to the Town Board of the Town of
Pittsford, County of Monroe, New York and the Board of Trustees of the Town/Village of East

Rochester, County of Monroe, New York as follows:

1. Attached hereto as EXHIBIT A is a true and correct copy of the Articles of
Incorporation of Corporation, filed with Secretary of State of the State of New York, and no
action for any amendment to such Articles of Incorporation or for dissolution of the Company
has been taken or is pending and the Articles of Incorporation will remain unmodified and in full

force and effect on the closing date.

2. Attached hereto as EXHIBIT B is a true, complete and correct copy of the By-
Laws of the Corporation, as in effect on the date hereof, which By-Laws, has not been amended,
modified or rescinded and remains in full force and effect as of the closing date.

3. As of the date of this certificate, John P. Sebastian and Joseph Sebastian are the
shareholders of Corporation. \

‘ 4. As of the date of this certificate, John P. Sebastian and Joseph Sebastian are the
- directors of Corporation.

5. As of the date of this certificate, John P. Sebastian and Joseph Sebastian are the
officers of Corporation. -

The person named below is the duly elected and qualified President of Northside Salvage Yard
Inc. The signature set forth below opposite the respective name is the genuine signature of such

incumbent: :

NAME TITLE SIﬁNA@RE P %
John P. Sebastian ‘ President A e
|¥4 !

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have signed this|Ceptificate as of December (O, 2025.

| LA

Jo . Sebastian, President




EXHIBIT A

Articles of Incorporation
(see attached)

R



EXHIBIT B

By-Laws
(see attached)

(\,



EXHIBIT F

NORTHSAL HOLDINGS LLC

ARTICLES OF ORGANIZATION AND OPERATING AGREEMENT



( (\
N.Y.S. DEPARTMENT OF ST.. .4 .
DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS AND STATE RECORDS ALBANY, NY 12231-0001

ENTITY NAME: NORTHSAL HOLDINGS LLC

DOCUMENT TYPE: ARTICLES OF ORGANIZATION (DOM., LLC) COUNTY: MONR

FTLED:01/31/2019 DURATION:****%%*%*% CASH#:190131010295 FILE#:190131010295
DOS ID:5486116

FILER: EXIST DATE
ANTHONY J IACCHETTA 01/31/2019
28 E MAIN STREET

SUITE 1400

ROCHESTER, NY 14614

ADDRESS FOR PROCESS:

C/0 THE COMPANY
350 WEST COMMERCIAL STREET
EAST ROCHESTER, NY 14445

REGISTERED AGENT:

Qif:;...'oq
I * s
z

."?:,MFN 7 OF.e*

"’¢....-I

The limited liability company is required to file a Biennial Statement with the
Department of State every two years pursuant to Limited Liability Company Law
Section 301. Notification that the Biennial Statement is due will only be made via
email. Please go to www.email.ebiennial.dos.ny.gov to provide an email address to
receive an email notification when the Biennial Statement is due.

SERVICE CODE: 00

FEE: 210.00 PAYMENTS 210.00
FILING: 200,00 CHARGE 210.00
TAX: 0.00 DRAWDOWN 0.00
PLAIN COPY: 0.00
CERT COPY: 10.00
CERT OF EXIST: 0.00

DOS-1025 (04/2007)

Authentication Number: 1901310372 To verify the authenticity of this document you
may access the Division of Corporation’s Document Authentication Website at

http://ecorp.dos.ny.gov




g N

STATE OF NEW YORK

DEPARTMENT OF STATE

1 hereby certify that the annexed copy has been compared with the
original document in the custody of the Secretary of State and that the same

is true copy of said original.

R APRRNRALD WITNESS my hand and official seal of the
Department of State, at the City of Albany, on
o January 31, 2019.
*3
3 M/ )»«7 M

Whitney Clark
Deputy Secretary of State

Rev, 06/07



( [

ARTICLES OF ORGANIZATION
OF
Northsal Holdings LLC

Under Section 203 of the Limited Liability Company Law

THE UNDERSIGNED, being a natural person of at least eighteen (18) years of age, and acting as
the organizer of the limited liability company hereby being formed under Section 203 of the
Limited Liability Company Law of the State of New York certifies that:

FIRST: The name of the limited liability company is:
Northsal Holdings LLC

SECOND: To engagc in any lawful act or activity within the purposes for which limited liability
companies may be organized pursuant to Limited Liability Company Law provided that
the limited liability company is not formed to engage in any act or activity requiring the
consent or approval of any state official, department, board, agency, or other body without
such consent or approval first being obtained.

THIRD: The county, within this state, in which the office of the limited liability company is to be
located is MONROE.

FOURTH: The Secretary of State is designated as agent of the limited liability company upon whom
process against it may be served. The address within or without this state to which the
Secretary of State shall mail a copy of any process against the limited liability company
served upon him or her is:

c/o the Company

350 West Commercial Street
East Rochester, NY 14445

FIFTH: The limited liability company is to be managed by: ONE OR MORE MANAGERS.

DOS-1239-£-11 (Rev. 02/12) FILE NUMBER: 190131010295; DOS ID: 5486116 Page 1 of 2



("~ (™

SIXTH: The limited liability company shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless all members,
managers, and former members and managers of the limited liability company against
expenses (including attorney's fees, judgments, fines, and amounts paid in settlement)
incurred in connection with any claims, causes of action, demands, damages, liabilities of
the limited liability company, and any pending or threatened action, suit, or proceeding.
Such indemnification shall be made to the fullest extent permitted by the laws of the State
of New York, provided that such acts or omissions which gives rise to the cause of action
or proceedings occurred while the Member or Manager was in performance of his or her
duties for the limited liability company and was not as a result of his or her fraud, gross
negligence, willful misconduct or a wrongful taking. The indemnification provided herein
shall inure to the benefit of successors, assigns, heirs, executors, and the administrators of
any such person.

1 certify that I have read the above statements, I am authorized to sign these Articles of Organization,
that the above statements are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief and that my
signature typed below constitutes my signature.

Anthony J lacchetta, Authorized Person (signature)

Anthony J lacchetta , ORGANIZER
28 E Main Street

Suite 1400

Rochester, NY 14614

Filed by:

Anthony J lacchetta
28 E Main Street
Suite 1400
Rochester, NY 14614

FILED WITH THE NYS DEPARTMENT OF STATE ON: 01/31/2019
FILE NUMBER: 190131010295; DOS ID: 5486116

Page 2 of 2



N ~
(" ("

OPERATING AGREEMENT
OF
NORTHSAL HOLDINGS LLC

This Operating Agreement (this “Agreement”), is dated and intended to be effective as of
January 31, 2019, and is made by the undersigned.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, a New York limited liability company known as Northsal Holdings LLC (the
“Company”) was formed pursuant to the Act, defined below; and

WHEREAS, the undersigned parties desire to establish their rights and obligations pursuant
to the Act in connection with the Company;

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which is hereby acknowledged, the undersigned party agrees as follows:

1. DEFINITIONS

The terms defined in Exhibit A hereto shall have the meanings therein specified for
the purposes of this Agreement. All references in this Agreement to a Section, Schedule or Exhibit
shall be deemed to mean the respective Section, Schedule or Exhibit of this Agreement,

2. ORGANIZATION

2.1  Formation. On January 31,2019, John Sebastian caused the formation of the
Company pursuant to the Act by directing Anthony J. Iacchetta, Esq. to file Articles of Organization
with the New York Department of State.

2.2 Operating Agreement, This Agreement, including all of the Schedules and
Exhibits hereto, shall constitute the "Operating Agreement" of the Company, as such term is used in
the Act. Each of the Members, by executing this Agreement as Members, agree to join in and to be
bound by the terms of this Agreement and to abide by all of its provisions.

2.3 Purposes. The Articles of Organization provide that the Company is formed
for the purpose or purposes of carrying on any act or activity for which a limited liability company
may be formed pursuant to the Act. '

3. MEMBERS

3.1 Members.



('\\ /"\\
\ { .

(a) The names and addresses of the Members are as set forth in
Schedule A. The Members’ Membership Units shall not be evidenced by certificates unless pursuant
to future action of the Company. The assignment or transfer of any or all such Membership Interests
shall be subject to any restrictions set forth in this Agreement, which restrictions, if any, shall be
noted conspicuously on the face of such certificate, if any. Any sale or transfer in violation of such
restrictions shall be void. A Membership Interest in the Company shall constitute a “security” within
the meaning of, and be governed by, Article 8 of the Uniform Commercial Code (including Section
8-102(a)(15) thereof) as in effect from time to time in the State of New York.

(b) The names and addresses of the replacement Members are as set forth
in Schedule A. The Members signing below agree to be bound by the terms of this Agreement. The
Members® Membership Units shall not be evidenced by certificates unless pursuant to future action
of the Company. The assignment or transfer of any or all such Membership Interests shall be subject
to any restrictions set forth in this Agreement, which restrictions, if any, shall be noted conspicuously
on the face of such certificate, if any. Any sale or transfer in violation of such restrictions shall be
void. A Membership Interest in the Company shall constitute a “security” within the meaning of,
and be governed by, Article 8 of the Uniform Commercial Code (including Section 8-102(a)(15)
thereof) as in effect from time to time in the State of New York.

3.2 Additional Members.

(a) A Person may be admitted as a Member after the date of this
Agreement upon a vote of the Members in accordance with Section 3.7. At the time of such vote,
the Members shall also determine the Capital Contribution to be made by such Person and the
number of Membership Units to be allocated to such Person upon admission as a Member.

(b)  Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Person shall become a Member
until such time as that Person has: (i) executed and filed with the Company a written instrument
satisfactory to the Managers agreeing to become a party to this Agreement; and (ii) made the Capital
Contribution determined by the Members in accordance with Section 3.2(a).

©) Upon the admission of an additional Member in accordance with this
Section 3.2, the Managers shall amend Schedule A to reflect the admission of such additional
Member,

33  Booksand Records. The Company shall keep books and records of accounts
and minutes of all meetings of the Members as well as all other financial books, records, reports and
documentation prepared in the normal course of business for a company engaged in its business.
Such books and records shall be maintained on a cash basis in accordance with this Agreement.

Doc #02-484541.3



- -

34  Information. Each Member may inspect during ordinary business hours and at
the principal place of business of the Company, the Articles of Organization, this Agreement, the
minutes of any meeting of the Members, and any tax returns of the Company for the immediately
preceding three Fiscal Years,

3.5  Meetings of Members. The Members shall meet annually and at such other
times as are determined in accordance with the Operating Procedures set forth in Exhibit B.
Meetings of Members shall be conducted in accordance with the Operating Procedures set forth in
Exhibit B.

3.6  Voting Agreements. An agreement between two or more Members, if in
writing and signed by the parties theteto, may provide that in exercising any voting rights, the
Membership Units held by them shall be voted as therein provided, or as they may agree, or as
determined in accordance with a procedure agreed upon by them.

3.7  Action by Vote of the Members.

(a) The Members shall have only those rights with respect to the
management of the property, business and affairs of the Company, and such other powers, as are
specified in this Agreement or the Act notwithstanding this Agreement. Except as specifically
provided to the contrary in this Agreement, a Member's right to vote with respect to a matter,
contract or transaction shall not be affected by the fact that such Person is interested in the matter,
contract or transaction subject to a requirement that all contracts or transactions between the
Company and a Member shall be based on terms and conditions that are commercially reasonable to
the Company. Any act of the Members where the Members are required or permitted to vote or
otherwise act shall be determined by a vote of the Members holding a majority of the Percentage
Interests in the Company; unless otherwise provided in Section 3.8 or elsewhere in this Agreement.

(b)  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the following specific
actions or transactions by the Managers on behalf of the Company or by the Managers acting to
authorize such actions by any company of which the Company is a principal, shall be determined by
a vote of the Members holding at least a majority of the Percentage Interests in the Company:

® Any Terminating Capital Transaction;

(i)  The metger, consolidation or combination of the Company with any
other Person;

(iii)  The admission of an additional Member;

Doc #02-484541.3



(iv)  The transfer by a Member of any Membership Units; in which case the
transferring Member's Membership Units shall be treated as not outstanding for purposes of the vote;
although if the transferee is a Member, the transferee's Membership Units shall be treated as
outstanding for purposes of the vote; and except that transfers provided for in Article 7, below, shall
be administered and require the votes, if any, as provided for therein;

(v)  The withdrawal of a Member, in which case the withdrawing
Member's Membership Units shall be treated as not outstanding for purposes of the vote;

(vi)  The dissolution of the Company as provided in Section 8.1(a);

(vii) The dissolution of the Company following the bankruptcy, death,
dissolution, incapacity or withdrawal of any Member or the occurrence of any other event that
terminates the continued membership of any Member, as provided in Section 8.1(b), in which case
the Membership Units of the Member suffering the dissolution event shall be treated as not
outstanding for purposes of the vote; or

(viii) An amendment to the Articles of Organization.

3.8 Member Vote to Remove or Replace a Manager. Any vote of the Members to
remove or replace a Manager, increase the number of Managers, or fill a vacancy of the position of
Manager shall be determined by a vote of the Members holding at least a majority of the Percentage
Interests in the Company.

4. MANAGEMENT AND EXTRAORDINARY TRANSACTIONS
4.1 Management.

(a)  The Company's business shall be managed by the Managers. Except
where the Members' approval is expressly required by this Agreement or by the Act notwithstanding
this Agreement, the Managers shall have full authority, power and discretion to make all decisions
with respect to the Company's business and to perform such other services and activities as set forth
in this Agreement. Every Manager shall be an agent of the Company for its business purposes and
each Manager may bind the Company in carrying out business decisions made in the ordinary course
of business of the Company (and not specifically referenced in Section 3.7 herein), provided that: (i)
the Managers shall have approved said action in accordance with this Agreement, or the Act
notwithstanding this Agreement; or (ii) the Managers shall havc delegated to any one or more
Manager the responsibility to carry out certain actions to be taken by such Manager(s) in accordance
with this Agreement or the act notwithstanding this Agreement; or (iii) the business entered into bya
Manager is in the ordinary course of business of the Company or within the powers of the Managers
provided for in Section 4.4. Unless otherwise expressly authorized by this Agreement or the

4



e e

Members as set forth herein, the act of a Manager that is not apparent for carrying on the Company's
business in the ordinary course shall not bind the Company.

(b) Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement or the Act
notwithstanding this Agreement, the Members shall have no right to control or manage, nor shall
they take any patt in the control or management of, the property, business or affairs of the Company,
but they may exercise the rights and powers of Members under this Agreement, including, without
limitation, the right to approve certain matters as provided herein.

4,2 Duty of Manager. Each Manager shall at all times perform his or her duties as
a Manager in good faith and with that degree of care that an ordinarily prudent person in a like
position would use under similar circumstances, In performing his or her duties, the Managers shall
be entitled to rely on information, opinions, reports and statements, including, without limitation,
financial statements and other financial data, in each case prepared by any Person as to matters the
Managers reasonably believe are within such Person's professional or expert competence.

4,3  Number, Tenure and Qualifications of Manager. The Company shall initially
have three Managers. The initial Managers shall be John Sebastian and Joseph Sebastian, whose
terms will continue until the earlier of the following: ’

(a) The death or withdrawal of a Manager;

(b) A vote of the Members to the removal of said named Manager, as
provided in Section 3.8 above;

() If a Manager is also a Member, the transfer of such Manager’s entire
Membership Interest in the Company; or

(d) If a Manager owns an Equity Interest, as defined in Section 7.9, in a
Member, the transfer of either: (i) the entire Membership Interest in the Company held by a Member
in which such Manager owns an Equity Interest; or (ii) such Manager’s entire Equity Interest in the
Member.

44  Powers of Manager. Without limiting the generality of Section 4.1, but subject
to Sections 3.7, 4.9, and 4.13, the Managers shall have the power and authority, upon unanimous
consent of the Managers, to act on behalf of the Company or to cause any company of which the
Company is a member to act to: (a) purchase, lease or othcrwise acquire from, or sell, lease or
otherwise dispose of the Propetty or any other property, real or personal; (b) borrow money,
mortgage, pledge, grant security interests or other encumbrances of any property of the Company,
real or personal; (c) open bank accounts or otherwise invest the funds of the Company; (d) sell,
dispose, trade or exchange the assets of the Company; (e) purchase insurance on the business and

5



(" &

assets of the Company; (f) commence or defend lawsuits and other proceedings; (g) enter into any
and all other agreements, instruments or other writings, for any purpose in the ordinary course of
business; (h) execute or modify leases with respect to any part or all of the assets of the Company; @A)
borrow money for and on behalf of the Company; (j) retain accountants, attorneys or other agents; (k)
execute any and all other instruments and documents which may be necessary or, in the opinion of
the Managers, desirable to carry out the intent and purpose of this Agreement; (1) make any and all
expenditures which the Managers, in his sole discretion, deems necessary or appropriate in
connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the carrying out of its obligations
and responsibilities under this Agreement; (m) enter into any kind of activity necessary to, or in
connection with, or incidental to the accomplishment of the purposes of the Company; and (n) take
any other lawful action that the Managers consider necessaty, convenient or advisable in connection
with any business of the Company or of any company of which the Company is a member.

4,5  No Exclusive Duty to Company. A Manager shall not be required to manage
the Company as his or her sole and exclusive function and he or she may have other business
interests and may engage in and shall incur no liability to the Company or any Member for other
activities in addition to those relating to the Company. Neither the Company nor any Member shall
have any right pursuant to this Agreement to share or participate in such other business interests or
activities or to the income or proceeds derived therefrom. '

4.6  Limitation of Liability. Except as otherwise required by the Act, no Manager
shall be liable to the Company or any Member for any loss or damage sustained by the Company or
any Member unless the Managers has failed to comply with Section 4.2 with respect to the actions or
occurrences giving rise to such loss or damage.

47  Indemnification. To the maximum extent permitted under the Act, the
Company shall indemnify and hold harmless each Manager from and against all claims and demands.

4.8  Resignation. Any Manager may resign at any time on notice to the Company.

The resignation of any Manager shall take effect upon receipt of such notice or at any later time

specified in such notice. A Manager elected to fill a vacancy shall hold office for successive terms of
one year, or until the earlier expiration of such term as provided in Section 4.3.

49  Action by Manager. The Managers shall manage the Company by as more
specifically provided for in the Operating Procedures set forth in Exhibit B.

4.10  Vacancies, Upon the resignation, withdrawal, death, or removal of a
Manager, the Members shall elect the successor Manager by a vote pursuant to Section 3.8 above.
A Manager elected to fill a vacancy shall hold office until the expiration of such term; as provided
for in Section 4.3.



o o

4,11 Salaries. The Managers shall be entitled to reimbursement of any expenses
which it incurs on behalf of the Company. In addition, salary or compensation for the Managers may
be paid by the Company as approved by the Members in accordance with Section 3.7.

4,12  Extraordinary Transactions. Notwithstanding anything else in this Agreement,
the Act or the Articles of Organization, approval of the Members in accordance with Section 3.7
shall be necessary for the consummation of any of the events or actions specified in Section 3.7.

4,13 Voting While Membership Interest Diluted. Irrespective of the provisions in
Article 4 herein requiring unanimous consent by the Managers for the carrying out of business as
outlined in this Section, in the event that the Membership Interest of any Member has been diluted as
provided in Section 5.3 herein, and until such time as said Membership Interest is restored as
provided in Section 5.3(d), any provisions of this Agreement requiring the unanimous consent of the
Managers are automatically modified to provide that the vote of a majority of the Managers shall be
required to authorize all of the actions outlined in such provisions.

4.14 Am_cndments.

(a) Except as the Act otherwise requires, the Articles of Organization or
this Agreement or both may be amended from time to time in writing by a unanimous vote of the
Members; except: (i) if the amendment is an amendment of Schedule A, or Schedule C-1 to Exhibit
C, which are not inconsistent with the provisions of these Articles of Organization, or required by the
provisions of this Agreement; or (ii) if the amendment is an amendment of the Articles of
Organization of a type set forth in Section 213(b) of the Act, then in either such case, such
amendment may be made by the Managers.

(b)  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in Section 4.13(a),
any amendment to this Agreement that would adversely affect: (i) the Federal income tax treatment
to be afforded to a Member; (ii) the liabilities of a Member; or (iii) the consent and approval rights
reserved by the Members, or which would compromise the obligation of a Member to make a
contribution or otherwise change the method of calculating allocations of profits, losses, deductions
or credits or the distributions of any Member, or the order or method provided for determining the
same, shall require the consent of each Member affected, which consent is not to be unreasonably
withheld or delayed.

(c) The determination of the fair market value of the Company's real estate
assets as listed on Schedule B may be amended only by a writing signed by each of the Members.

4.15. Guarantee of Company Loans. If, in order to facilitate borrowing by the
Company of loans secured by mortgages on the Company’s assets, one or more of the Managers,
Members or principals of Members is required by the lender to personally guarantee such loans; John
Sebastian, Joseph Sebastian and any other Member or principals of Members agree to do so. Any



non-guaranteeing Members or principals of Members agree to personally execute a cross
indemnification agreement in the form attached hereto as Exhibit E to indemnify the guaranteeing
parties against loss, pro rata.

5. CAPITAL  CONTRIBUTIONS, ALLOCATIONS  AND
DISTRIBUTIONS

5.1  Capital Contributions. At the time of the execution of this Agreement, the
Members shall make the Capital Contributions set forth in Schedule A and all Capital Accounts shall
be established accordingly. Each Member shall own Membership Units in the amounts set forth for
such Member in Schedule A and shall have a Percentage Interest in the Company as set forth in
Schedule A. Schedule A shall be amended from time to time by the Managers to the extent
necessary to accurately reflect redemptions, Capital Contributions, the issuance of additional
Membership Units, the admission of additional Members, or similar events having an effect on any
item set forth therein. Except as provided in Sections 5.2 or 5.7 hereof, the Members shall have no
obligation to make any additional Capital Contributions or loans to the Company.

5.2 Additional Capital Contribution,

(@  To the extent that a shortfall exceeding One Million and 00/100
Dollars ($1,000,000.00) in the aggregate with all prior shortfalls exists between Company’s revenues
(including proceeds from loans from Members or other loans) and Company expenses, then, upon
the consent of the Members in accordance with Section 3.7, each Member shall be required to pay to
the Company its proportional share of any shortfall based upon each Members’ Membership Interest
as an additional Capital Contribution (a “Shortfall Capital Call”).

(b) In addition to the above, the occurrence of one or more of the
following events shall be deemed a capital call to be effective without a vote of the Members (a
“Critical Capital Call”), the same to be made on the approval of the Managers. Said Critical Capital
Call is to be an amount exceeding One Million and 00/100 Dollars ($1,000,000.00) in the aggregate
with all other such amounts as are necessary to cure the following conditions causing the Critical
Capital Call:

@) any event or condition with which the passage of time will or
may cause a lien to attach to any of the assets of the Company;

(i)  adefault or late payment on any loan or indebtedness which
binds the Company, including, without limitation, any mortgage loan;

(iii)  the late payment of any taxes due by the Company, including,
without limitation, any real property taxes;



(O S

(iv)  anyemergency repairs identified by a majority of the Managers
to require prompt attention;

(v)  the repair of any casualty to the premises owned by the
Company, which casualty is unfunded or under-funded by insurance; and

(vi) any other event which, under any then-existing loan or
mortgage agreement, will or may cause an event of default upon the passage of time.

The term “Additional Capital Contribution,” as used herein, shall include
contributions to meet a Shortfall Capital Call or a Critical Capital Call, or both.

5.3 Failure to Pay an Additional Capital Contribution,

(a) Following written notice of a Shortfall Capital Call or Critical Capital
Call as noted above from a Manager which sets for the amount of the Shortfall Capital Call or
Critical Capital Call and the condition causing such Shortfall Capital Call or Critical Capital Call,
the required Additional Capital Contribution shall be made by the Members to the Company within
ten (10) days of receipt of the written notice. The notice of a demand for an Additional Capital
Contribution shall state whether it is for a Shortfall Capital Call or a Critical Capital Call. Upon the
failure of a Member to make timely payment of an Additional Capital Contribution, the Managers or
any one of them shall issue an additional notice to the defaulting Member (the “Second Notice™).

(b)  In the event that a defaulting Member fails to pay an Additional
Capital Contribution within three (3) days after the Second Notice, then the Managers or any one of
them shall request the non-defaulting Members to pay the unpaid amount of the defaulting Member’s
Additional Capital Contribution (the “Unpaid Contribution”) pro-rata based on the total Membership
Interest of the non-defaulting Member(s). Any amount paid by a non-defaulting Member by making
an Additional Capital Contribution to fund an Unpaid Contribution shall be treated as an Additional
Capital Contribution by the contributing Member and the Company shall increase the contributing
Member’s Percentage Interest and decrease the defaulting Member’s Percentage Interest by two to
one dilution and Schedule A shall be amended accordingly.

(c)  Byway of example to illustrate the possibility that a Member defaults
on an Additional Capital Contribution, assume the following:

) The Corhpany has three equal Members (A, B, and C) each
with a one-third (1/3rd) Percentage Interest;

(i)  Each Member to date has contributed $300,000 for a total of all
Capital Contributions to date of $900,000;



s ©

(iii)  The Managers make a capital call of $300,000 requiring each
Member to contribute an additional $100,000;

(iv)  Member B is unable or unwilling to contribute the required
additional $100,000; and '

(v)  Then Members A and C shall participate equally by
contributing the additional $50,000 each. Each non-defaulting contributing Member shall then
receive additional Percentage Interests and dilute defaulting Member B. If Members A and C choose
to dilute B’s Percentage Interest, then the dilution is calculated as follows:

(A)  Take the total Capital Contributions to date ($900,000)
and add to it the additional Capital Contribution being called for by the Managets ($300,000) to
arrive at a total Capital Contribution to date ($1,200,000). Divide the defaulting Member B’s
required Capital Contribution of $100,000 by the total Capital Contribution to date of $1,200,000
($100,000/$1,200,000) and then multiply by 2 to arrive at 1/6. This 1/6 percentage interest is then
allocated equally to both Members A and C. The resulting Member’s Percentage Interests are as
follows: Members A and C = 1/3 plus 1/12 to arrive at 5/12ths (41 and 2/3rds percent) each and
Member B’s percentage interest is reduced by 1/6th of the total Company Percentage Interests (16
and 2/3rds percent); and

(B)  Accordingly, the Percentage Interests immediately after
the capital call and failure to contribute by Member B would be: Member A —412/3rd%; Member B
— 16 2/3rd%; and Member C — 41 2/3rd%.

(d)  In the event that a Member whose Membership Interest has been
diluted pursuant to the provisions of Section 5.3 is desirous of reestablishing his/her/its percentage of
Membership Interest, then the following shall be applicable:

) The diluted Member shall give written notice to the remaining
Member(s) of his/her/its desire to reestablish its proportional share of Membership Interest; and

(i)  Said notice shall be delivered not more than six (6) months
from the date that the diluted Member is given the Second Notice as provided in Section 5.3(a) and

(b).

(iii)  The diluted Member shall repay to those Member(s) who
advanced the Additional Capital Contribution the sum that was paid by them which was otherwise
required to be paid by the diluted Member together with an opportunity premium computed at the
rate of eight percent (8%) of the Additional Capital Contribution so advanced by the other
Membet(s) which was to be paid by the diluted Member, and upon payment by the diluted Member
of the Additional Capital Contribution paid into the Company (which was otherwise payable by the

10



(\\ (\

diluted Member) along with the eight percent (8%) opportunity premium, the Managers shall fully
reestablish the Membership Interest and Capital Account of the diluted Member to its prior status
without reference to the event causing the dilution. The right of the diluted Member to re-established
his/her/its Membership Interest may only be utilized once by a Member.

5.4  Return of Capital Contributions. Except as otherwise provided in this
Agreement, no Member shall have the right to withdraw, borrow, demand or otherwise receive the
return of all or any part of his Capital Contribution. In the event a Member is entitled to receive all
or any part of any Capital Contribution, such Member shall not have the right to receive any property
other than cash except as may be specifically provided herein.

5.5  No Interest on Capital Contributions. No Member shall be entitled to receive
ot be paid any interest, salary or draw with respect to his Capital Contributions or the amount in his
Capital Account or for services rendered on behalf of the Company or otherwise solely in his
capacity as a Member, except as otherwise provided in this Agreement.

5.6  Capital Accounts, The Company shall establish and maintain a separate
Capital Account for each Member in accordance with Exhibit C. The Capital Account of each
permitted transferee of a Membership Interest shall initially be equal to the Capital Account of the
transferor as of the effective date of the Transfer. Notwithstanding any other provision in this
Agreement to the contrary, no Member shall be obligated at any time, to the Company, to the other
Member(s), to the Managers or to any creditor of the Company, to restore a negative Capital
Account.

57  Loans by Members.

(a) No Member shall be obligated to make any loan to the Company. A
Member may, at its election, loan or cause to be loaned to the Company such sums and on such
terms as the Managers deem appropriate and necessary for the conduct of the Company’s business.
Such loans shall bear interest at a rate agreed upon by the Managers and the loaning Member and
shall be evidenced by one or more promissory notes.

(b) In the event a Member shall, subject to the terms of this Agreement,
make 2 loan or loans to the Company, such loan or loans shall be repayable out of and be considered
a first charge against any amounts available for distribution to the Members. In making such loans,
the Member shall be treated as a creditor of the Company and not as a Member. Any such loan shall
constitute a loan from the Member to the Company, and shall in no event be deemed to constitute a
Capital Contribution.

5.8  Allocations. For purposes of maintaining the Capital Accounts and in
determining the rights of the Members among themselves, the Company's items of income, gain, loss

11



2 -

and deduction (computed in accordance with Exhibit C) shall be allocated among the Members in
each taxable year (or portion thereof) in accordance with Exhibit D.

59 Distributions.

(a) Distribution of Available Cash. At least annually, the Managers shall
determine the amount of Available Cash generated by the Company during such year or shorter
period and shall cause the Company to distribute such Available Cash to the Members, in accordance
with their Percentage Interests.

(b)  Amounts Withheld. All amounts withheld pursuant to the Code or any
provisions of any state or local tax law with respect to any allocation, payment or distribution to a
Member or Assignee shall be treated as amounts distributed to the Member or Assignee pursuant to
Section 5.5(a) for all purposes under this Agreement.

(¢)  Distributions Upon Liquidation. Proceeds from a Terminating Capital
Transaction and any other cash received or reductions in reserves made after commencement of the
liquidation of the Company shall be distributed to the Members in accordance with Article 8.

6. TAXES

6.1 - Preparation of Tax Returns. The Managers shall arrange for the preparation
and timely filing of all returns of Company income, gains, deductions, losses and other items
required of the Company for federal and state income tax purposes and shall use all reasonable
efforts to furnish, within ninety (90) days of the close of each taxable year, the tax information
reasonably required by the Members for federal and state income tax reporting purposes.

6.2  Tax Elections. Except as otherwise provided herein, the Managers shall, in
their sole and absolute discretion, determine whether to make any available election pursuant to the
Code. The Managers shall have the right to seek to revoke any such election (including, without
limitation, the election under Section 754 of the Code) upon the Managers’ determination in their
sole and absolute discretion that such revocation is in the best interests of the Members,

6.3 Tax Matters Partner.

(a) John Sebastian shall be the “Tax Matters Partner” of the Company for
federal income tax purposes. Pursuant to Section 6230(¢) of the Code, upon receipt of notice from
the IRS of the beginning of an administrative proceeding with respect to the Company, the Tax
Matters Partner shall furnish the IRS with the name, address, taxpayer identification number, and
profits interest of each of the Members; provided, however, that such information is provided to the
Company by the Members.

12



)] The Tax Matters Partner is authorized, but not required:

(i) to enter into any settlement with the IRS with respect to any
administrative or judicial proceedings for the adjustment of Company items required to be taken into
account by a Member for income tax purposes (such administrative proceedings being referred to as
a "tax audit" and such judicial proceedings being referred to as "judicial review"), and in the
settlement agreement the Tax Matters Partner may expressly state that such agreement shall bind all
Members, except that such settlement agreement shall not bind any Member (1) who (within the time
prescribed pursuant to the Code and Regulations) files a statement with the IRS providing that the
Tax Matters Partner shall not have the authority to enter into a settlement agreement on behalf of
such Member or (2) who is a "notice partner” (as defined in Section 6231(a)(8) of the Codc) or a
member of a "notice group" (as defined in Section 6223(b)(2) of the Code);

(i)  inthe event thatanotice of a final administrative adjustment at
the Company level of any item required to be taken into account by a Member for tax purposes (a
"final adjustment") is mailed to the Tax Matters Partner, to seek judicial review of such final
adjustment, including the filing of a petition for readjustment with the Tax Court or the filing of a
complaint for refund with the United States Claims Court or the District Court of the United States
for the district in which the Company's principal place of business is located,;

(iii)  to intervene in any action brought by any other Member for
judicial review of a final adjustment;

(iv)  to file arequest for an administrative adjustment with the IRS
and, if any part of such request is not allowed by the IRS, to file an appropriate pleading (petition or
complaint) for judicial review with respect to such request;

(v)  to enter into an agreement with the IRS to extend the period for
assessing any tax which is attributable to any item required to be taken into account by a Member for
tax purposes, or an item affected by such item; and

(vi) to take any other action on behalf of the Members or the
Company in connection with any tax audit or judicial review proceeding to the extent permitted by
applicable law or regulations.

The taking of any action and the incurring of any expense by the Tax Matters
Partner in connection with any such proceeding, except to the extent required by law, is a matter in
the sole and absolute discretion of the Tax Matters Partner and the provisions relating to
indemnification of the Managers set forth in Section 4.7 shall be fully applicable to the Tax Matters
Partner in its capacity as such.

13



(©) Partnership Representative. John Sebastian shall be designated the
“partnership representative” (the “Partnership Representative™) as defined in Code Section 6223 (as
in effect following the effective date of its amendment by Section 1101 of H.R. 1314 (the “Bipartisan
Budget Act of 2015”)) and the Company, the Managers and the Members shall complete any
necessary actions (including executing any requested certificates or other documents) to effect such
designation. John Sebastian may make any elections available to be made as Partnership
Representative, including, without limitation, the election described in Code Section 6226(a)(1) (as
in effect following the effective date of its amendment by Section 1101 of the Bipartisan Budget Act
0f2015).

(d)  The Tax Matters Partner or Partnership Representative shall receive no
compensation for its services as such. All third party costs and expenses incurred by the Tax Matters
Partner or Partnership Representative in performing its duties as such (including legal and
accounting fees and expenses) shall be borne by the Company. Nothing herein shall be construed to
restrict the Company from engaging an accounting firm to assist the Tax Matters Partner or
Partnership Representative in discharging its duties hereunder.

6.4  Organizational Expenses. The Company, to the extent permitted by the Code,
shall elect to deduct expenses, if any, incurred by it in organizing the Company ratably over the
shortest length of time permitted by or provided for by the Code.

6.5  Withholding, Each Member hereby authorizes the Company to withhold from
or pay on behalf of or with respect to such Member any amount of federal, state, local, or foreign
taxes that the Tax Matters Partner determines that the Company is required to withhold or pay with
respect to any amount distributable or allocable to such Member pursuant to this Agreement,
including, without limitation, any taxes required to be withheld or paid by the Company pursuant to
Sections 1441, 1442, 1445, or 1446 of the Code. Any amount paid on behalf of or with respect to a
Member shall constitute a loan by the Company to such Member, which loan shall be repaid by such
Member within fifteen (15) days after notice from the Tax Matters Partner that such payment must
be made.

7. TRANSFERABILITY
7.1 General, Except as set forth in this Article 7, no Member shall withdraw from

membership in the Company or give, sell, assign, pledge, hypothecate, exchange or otherwise
dispose to another Person (hereinafter a "transfer") any Membership Units.

14



7.2  Withdrawal from Company.

(a) A Member does not have the right or power to withdraw from
membership in the Company without the consent of the other Members by vote thereof'in accordance
with Section 3.7. Any such withdrawing Member shall sign the appropriate instrument evidencing
withdrawal under this provision as deemed necessary or appropriate by the Managers. In the event
such consent is not granted, the Member shall not be permitted to withdraw, and no notice to the
Company shall effectuate such withdrawal.

(b)  Upon consent to the withdrawal from membership in the Company in
accordance with Section 7.2(a), any withdrawing Member shall offer, or be deemed to have offered,
to sell his entire Membership Interest to the Members and the Members shall have a right of first
refusal to purchase all (but not less than all) of the withdrawing Member’s Membership Interest in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7.4. If any portion of the Membership Interest subject to
the right of first refusal to purchase is not purchased in accordance with the provisions of this Article
7, within the time periods referred to therein, the right of first refusal to purchase shall be deemed to
be rejected as to the entirc Membership Interest, the withdrawing Member shall not be entitled to
receive any amount in liquidation of his Membership Interest until dissolution and winding up of the
Company, but shall continue to be entitled to receive, with respect to such Member’s Membership
Units and on behalf of such Member or such Member’s estate, the distributions and allocations of
profits and losses to which such Member would be entitled, with no right to act as a Member and
such Member’s Membership Units shall be treated as not outstanding for purposes of any vote.

7.3 Death, Incapacity, Bankruptcy or Dissolution of a Member.

(a) In the event of the bankruptcy or dissolution of a Member, unless the
Company is dissolved in accordance with Section 8.1(b), such Member or the legal or personal
representative of the Member shall offer, or be deemed to have offered, to sell his entire Membership
Interest to the Members, and the Members shall have a right of first refusal to purchase all (but not
less than all) of the disassociating Member’s Membership Interest and subject to the provisions of
Section 7.4. Ifany portion of the Membership Interest subject to the right of first refusal to purchase
is not purchased in accordance with the provisions of this Article 7, within the time periods referred
to therein, the right of first refusal to purchase shall be deemed to be rejected as to the entire
Membership Interest and the legal or personal representative of the Member shall not be entitled to
receive any amount in liquidation of his Membership Interest until dissolution and winding up of the
Company, but shall continue to be entitled to receive, with respect to such Member’s Membership
Units and on behalf of such Member, the distributions and allocations of profits and losses to which
such Member would be entitled, with no right to act as a Member and such Member’s Membership
Units shall be treated as not outstanding for purposes of any vote.

(b) In the event of the death or incapacity of a Member, unless the Company is

15



dissolved in accordance with Section 8.1(b), the legal or personal representative of the Member or
the Member’s estate and any heirs or trust or entity for the benefit of the heirs shall continue to be a
Member and entitled to receive, with respect to such deceased or incapacitated Member’s
Membership Units, the distributions and allocations of profits and losses to which such Member
would be entitled together with all rights to act as a Member and vote as a Membet as provided for
herein,

7.4  Payment for Membership Interest. In exchange for a Member’s Membership
Units which are to be purchased pursuant to Sections 7.2, 7.3 or 7.8, within 180 days following the
event giving rise to such right of first refusal to purchase, the Members exercising such right shall
pay such Member, or the legal or personal representative of the Member or the Member’s estate, an
amount in cash determined pursuant to Section 7.6. At the option of and in the sole discretion of the
purchasing Members, those Members may execute a note payable to the disassociating Member, or
the legal or personal representative of the disassociating Member or the disassociating Member’s
estate, for any amounts payable to such Member pursuant to the provisions hereof. Any such note
shall be payable in five (5) annual installments from the date of the purchase and shall bear interest at
arate equal to the prime rate published in the Wall Street Journal as representative of the interest rate
at the top of the range on loans maturing at the end of five (5) years, such rate to be adjusted
quarterly on the first day of April, July, October and January of each year, based on such information
published most recently preceding each such adjustment date, and if that information is no longer
available, the holder of the note will choose a new index which is based upon comparable
information. The obligation evidenced by the note shall be secured by the purchasing Members’
right to receive distributions of cash or other property from the Company (which shall be paid to the
purchasing Members provided that thete is no default with respect to the note which has not been
cured) and to receive allocations of the income, gains, credits, deductions, profits and losses of the
Company and such pledge will not require any further consent from the Members.

7.5 Transfer. Except as provided in Sections 7.2, 7.3 or 7.8, a Member may
transfer all or a portion of or any rights with respect to his/her/its Membership Units to another
Person, whether or not a Member, only upon (i) a vote of the Members in accordance with
Section 3.7 hereof, and (ii) the execution by the transferee of a written instrument satisfactory to the
Managers agreeing to become a party to this Agreement. Upon a transfer of Membership Units in
accordance with this Section 7.5, the transferee shall immediately become a Member and the
Managers shall amend Schedule A to reflect such transfer. The Members agree that the restrictions
on the transfers of Membership Units hereunder are fair and reasonable. Any transfer or attempted
transfer of a Membership Unit in violation of the terms of this Agreement shall be null and void and
have no effect.

7.6 Purchase Price. The price of the Membership Units to be purchased under this
Agreement shall be their Fair Market Value on the Valuation Date.

16



ol e

(a)  The term "Fair Market Value" as used in this Section 7.6 shall be an
amount which bears the same proportion to the amount of the Net Worth of the Company as the
number of Membership Units to be purchased bears to the total number of the Company's
Membership Units outstanding on the Valuation Date.

(b)  The Valuation Date, as used herein shall be the last day of the month
preceding the month in which the event giving rise to the purchase occurred, provided, however,
that, if the date so determined follows by less than four (4) calendar months the close of the
Company's last preceding fiscal year, then the last day of such fiscal year shall be the Valuation Date.

(c) The term "Net Worth", as used in subsection 7.6(a) shall be an amount
equal to the amount of the Company's assets, less the amount of its liabilities, on the Valuation Date,
as disclosed by the Company's books of account regularly maintained in accordance with the
accounting practices regularly followed by the Company and, in cases not covered by such practices,
in accordance with cash basis, tax accounting principles consistently applied, but in all events
adjusted as follows:

@) All real estate shall be valued at its fair market value, as
stipulated in Schedule B. Such valuation may be modified from time to time by written agreement of
all the Members in accordance with Section 4.14. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event a
purchase is required hereunder and there has been no stipulation of the fair market value of the real
estate within the period of five (5) years from the relevant Valuation Date, the fair market value of
the real estate shall be determined by the majority vote of a panel of three (3) appraisers each holding
the designation of NYS Certified General Real Estate Appraiser, one appointed by the selling
Member or his representative, one appointed by the purchasing Member(s) and one appointed by the
other two appraisers;

(i)  Adjustment shall be made on account of events occurring
subsequent to the Valuation Date, as provided for in subsection 7.6(e);

(ili)  Except by operation of the preceding subsection 7.6(c)(ii),
reserves for contingent liabilities shall not be treated as liabilities; and

(iv)  No additional amount shall be included for goodwill.

(d)  The calculation of the Company's Net Worth shall be determined by
the firm of certified public accountants regularly employed by the Company, or, if for any reason
such firm does not make such determination, then such determination shall be made by any reputable
firm of certified public accountants employed for the purpose by the Company. The determination
shall be made from the Company's books of account, the accuracy of which shall be assumed, a

17



e s

formal audit thereof being hereby expressly waived. The expense of determining the Net Worth
shall be borne equally by the selling and purchasing parties.

(e) If at any time during the period of three (3) years after the Valuation
Date, the Company shall become aware of a loss, liability, cost or expense which was not reflected
on its books of account as of the Valuation Date, but which arose out of its operations prior to the
Valuation Date, or which impaired the value of an asset of the Company as of the Valuation Date,
the Company shall notify the selling Member, of the amount and nature of such loss. The selling
Member shall have the right, at its own cost and expense, to examine the Company's books and
records with respect to such loss and, if relevant, to participate with the Company in resisting a claim
by a third party if it believes that the amount is not properly due from the Company. The purchase
price for the Membership Units of the selling Member shall be reduced to reflect the proportionate
amount of such loss, and the selling Member shall reimburse the purchasing Member for said sums;
such reimbursement being in the form of a cash payment or a setoff on any note owed by the
purchasing Member to the selling Member as part of the purchase price of the Membership Units.

7.7  Pro Rata Purchase. With respect to the right of first refusal provided for in this
Article 7, in the absence of any other agreement between them, each Member shall be entitled to
purchase that proportion of the selling Member's Membership Interest equal to the proportion which
that purchasing Member's Membership Interest bears to the Membership Interests of all of the
purchasing Members who wish to purchase a portion of the selling Member's Membership Interest.
The right to purchase a pro rata share of the Membership Interest of the selling Member shall be
solely the right of the other non-selling Members.

7.8 Breach by Member. If it is determined that a Member has breached any
provision of this Agreement and fails to cure said breach within ten (10) days of the Member’s
receipt of written notice as provided herein, such Member shall be liable to the Company for all
damages incurred by the Company as a direct result of such breach. In addition, such breaching
Member shall offer, or be deemed to have offered, to sell his entire Membership Interest to the non-
breaching Members, and the non-breaching Members shall have a right of first refusal to purchase all
(but not less than all) of the breaching Member's Membership Interest, subject to the provisions of
this Article 7. If any portion of the Membership Interest subject to the right of first refusal to
purchase is not purchased in accordance with the provisions of this Article 7, within the time periods
referred to therein, the right of first refusal to purchase shall be deemed to be rejected as to the entire
Membership Interest and the breaching Member shall not be entitled to receive any amount in
liquidation of his Membership Interest until dissolution and winding up of the Company, but shall
continue to be entitled to rcccive, with respect to such Member's Membership Units and on behalf of
such Member, the distributions and allocations of profits and losses to which such Member would be
entitled, with no right to act as a Member and such Member's Membership Units shall be treated as
not outstanding for purposes of any vote.

18



7.9  Transfer of Equity Interests in Members

(a) General. Ifa Member is an entity, then any Equity Interest, as defined
herein, in such Member shall not be transferred, sold, assigned, pledged, hypothecated, exchanged or
otherwise disposed of without the prior written consent of all of the other then-existing Members.
As used herein, an “Equity Interest” means a majority or controlling equity ownership interest in
such Member.

(b) Effect of Transfer of Equity Interest. In the event that a transfer of an
Equity Interest, which transfer is prohibited by Section 7.9 (a) above, occurs without the prior written
consent of all other Members, then upon said transfer of Equity Interest, the effected Member shall
be deemed for all purposes as having made an unauthorized transfer of Membership Units as defined
in Article 7 herein and the Member in which the Equity Interest was transferred shall offer, or be
deemed to have offered, to sell his entire Membership Interest to the other Members in accordance
with Section 7.2 (b).

8. DISSOLUTION

8.1  Dissolution. The Company shall be dissolved and its affairs shall be wound
up upon the following circumstances:

(a) The aftirmative vote of the Members in accordance with Section 3.7;
or

(b) In the event of the bankruptcy, death, dissolution, incapacity or
withdrawal of any Member or the occurrence of any other event that terminates the continued
membership of any Member, the remaining Members shall have the right to continue the Company,
and the Company shall continue, unless within one hundred twenty (120) days after such event the
Company is dissolved by the affirmative vote of the remaining Members in accordance with Section
3.7.

8.2  Winding Up and Liquidation.

(a) Upon the occurrence of an event set forth in Section 8.1 (a
"Liquidating Event"), the Company shall continue solely for the purposes of winding up its affairs in
an orderly manner, liquidating its assets and satisfying the claims ofits creditors and Members. No
Member shall take any action that is inconsistent with, or not necessary to or appropriate for, the
winding up of the Company's business and affairs. The Managers (referred to in this Article 8 as, the
"Liquidator"), shall be responsible for overseeing the winding up and dissolution of the Company
and shall take full account of the Company's liabilities and property and the Company property shall
be liquidated as promptly as is consistent with obtaining the fair value thereof, and the proceeds
therefrom shall be applied and distributed in the following order:

19



(" ("

@) First, to the payment and discharge of all of the Company's
debts and liabilities to its creditors, not including Members who are creditors;

(i)  Second, to Members who are creditors, including the
repayment of any loans from Members;

(iti)  Third, to Members and former Members in satisfaction of
liabilities for distributions under Section 507 or 509 of the Act; and

(iv)  The balance, if any, to the Members in accordance with their
Percentage Interests.

(b)  Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 8.2(a) which require
liquidation of the assets of the Company, but subject to the order of priorities set forth therein, if
prior to or upon dissolution of the Company the Liquidator determines that an immediate sale of part
or all of the Company's assets would be impractical or would cause undue loss to the Members, the
Liquidator may, in its sole and absolute discretion, defer for a reasonable time the liquidation of any
assets except those necessary to satisfy liabilities of the Company (including those to Members as
creditors) and/or distribute to the Members, in lieu of cash, as tenants in common and in accordance
with the provisions of Section 8.2(a), undivided interests in such Company assets as the Liquidator
deems not suitable for liquidation. Any such distributions in kind shall be made only if, in the good
faith judgment of the Liquidator, such distributions in kind are in the best interest of the Members,
and shall be subject to such conditions relating to the disposition and management of such properties
as the Liquidator deems reasonable and equitable and to any agreements governing the operation of
such properties at such time. The Liquidator shall determine the fair market value of any property
distributed in kind using such reasonable method of valuation as it may adopt.

©) In the discretion of the Liquidator, a pro rata portion of the
distributions that would otherwise be made to the Members pursuant to this Article 8 may be:

@A) distributed to a trust established for the benefit of the Members
for the purposes of liquidating Company assets, collecting amounts owed to the Company, and
paying any contingent or unforeseen liabilities or obligations of the Company or the Membets arising
out of or in connection with the Company. The assets of any such trust shall be distributed to the
Members from time to time, in the reasonable discretion of the Liquidator, in the same propottions as
(he amount distributed to such trust by the Company would otherwisc have been distributed to the
Members pursuant to this Agreement; or

(i)  withheld or escrowed to provide a reasonable reserve for
Company liabilities (contingent or otherwise) and to reflect the unrealized portion of any installment
obligations owed to the Company, provided that such withheld or escrowed amounts shall be

20



© O

distributed to the Members in the manner and order of priority set forth in Section 8.2(a) as soon as
practicable.

8.3  Articles of Dissolution. Within ninety (90) days following the dissolution and
the commencement of winding up of the Company, or at any other time there are no Membets,
articles of dissolution shall be filed with the New York Department of State pursuant to the Act.

8.4  Compliance with Timing Requirements of Regulations. In the event the
Company is "liquidated" within the meaning of Regulations Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(ii)(g),
distributions shall be made pursuant to this Article 8 to the Members who have positive Capital
Accounts in compliance with Regulations Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(ii)(b)(2). If any Member has a
deficit balance in his Capital Account (after giving effect to all contributions, distributions and
allocations for all taxable years, including the year during which such liquidation occurs), such
Member shall have no obligation to make any contribution to the capital of the Company with
respect to such deficit, and such deficit shall not be considered a debt owed to the Company or to any
other Person for any purpose whatsoever.

8.5 Deemed Distribution and Recontribution. Notwithstanding any other
provision of this Article 8, in the event the Company is considered liquidated within the meaning of
Regulations Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(ii)(g), but no Liquidating Event has occurred, the Company's
property shall not be liquidated, the Company's liabilities shall not be paid or discharged, and the
Company's affairs shall not be wound up. Instead, for federal income tax purposes and for purposes
of maintaining Capital Accounts pursuant to Exhibit C hereto, the Company shall be deemed to have
distributed the property in kind to the Members, who shall be deemed to have assumed and taken
such property subject to all Company liabilities, all in accordance with their respective ‘Capital
Accounts. Immediately thereafter, the Members shall be deemed to have re-contributed the
Company property in kind to the Company, which shall be deemed to have assumed and taken such
property subject to all such liabilities.

8.6  Rights of Members. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, each
Member shall look solely to the assets of the Company for the return of its Capital Account and shall
have no right or power to demand or receive property other than cash from the Company. Except as
otherwise provided in this Agreement, no Member shall have priority over any other Member as to
the return of its Capital Account, distributions, or allocations.

9. GENERAL PROVISIONS

9.1  Notices. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement or required by law,
any notice, demand or other communication required or permitted to be given pursuant to this
Agreement shall have been sufficiently given for all purposes if (i) delivered personally to the Person
or to any executive officer of the Person to whom such notice, demand or other communication is
directed, or (ii) sent by first-class mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the Person at his/her/its last-

- 21



o e

known address. In addition, any said notice shall be delivered to legal counsel for the Member or
such other counsel at the address as a Member may designate from time to time by written notice to
the other Members. All notices required herein shall be delivered as required herein to the Member
and to his/hetr/its then applicable legal counsel. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any
such notice shall be deemed to be given five (5) business days after it was mailed.

9.2  Entire Agreement/Amendments. This Agreement and the Articles of
Organization contain the entire agreement among the Members with respect to the subject matter
hereof and supersede all prior agreements and understandings between the parties with respect to the
subject matter hereof. No amendment of this Agreement or the Articles of Organization shall be
effective unless made in accordance with Section 4.14.

9.3  Waiver. No failure of a Member to exercise, and no delay by a Member in
exercising, any right or remedy under this Agreement shall constitute a waiver of such right or
remedy. No waiver by a Member of any such right or remedy under this Agreement shall be
effective unless made in a writing duly executed by all Members and specifically referring to each
such right or remedy being waived.

9.4  Severability, If any of the terms of this Agreement are declared to be illegal or
unenforceable by any court or tribunal of competent jurisdiction, such term or terms shall be null and
void and shall be deemed deleted from this Agreement with respect to the jurisdiction of that court or
tribunal, provided, however, that all the remaining terms hereof shall remain in full force and effect.

9.5  Binding Effect and Benefit. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure
to the benefit of all Members, and each of the permitted successors and assignees of the Members.
No party may assign rights or delegate obligations hereunder except pursuant to the provisions
hereof. This Agreement and the right of any party hereto or the Company to require any contribution
or loan from any other party shall not be construed as conferring any right or benefit to or upon any
other person or entity not a party to this Agreement, it being expressly understood that in entering
into this Agreement, the parties did not intend to create any third party beneficiaries of this
Agreement.

9.6  Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts,
each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same
instrument.

9.7  Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by, and interpreted and
construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York, without regard to principles of
conflict of laws.

[Signature Page Follows]

22



(" (-

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement with the intent
that it be effective as of the date first written above.

COMPANY:

Northsal Holdings LLC

?ﬁ 0J ohn Sebas’uan
£ Manager

By: ”J/J ”/t//”’MJU/

N e: J6 seph Sebastian
“fts:  Manager

MEMBERS:

? /Z f
P
Q’f/,< / el ik

//Jhn Sebastian

Ve
_ /(jw/z'm& ﬂ/é/;o ,4 _
/Qfo’s/eph Sebastian

4

23



SCHEDULE A - MEMBERS

Initial
Member's Names Capital
and Addresses

John Sebastian $1.00
25 Bradford Hill Drive
Fairport, New York 14450

Joseph Sebastian $1.00
954 West Linden Avenue
East Rochester, New York 14445

Totals $2.00

END OF SCHEDULE A

24

Contributions

Number of
Membership
Units

100

100

200

Percentage
Interest in

the Company

50%

50%

100%



. .

SCHEDULE B - FAIR MARKET VALUE OF COMPANY REAL ESTATE ASSETS

The agreed fair market value of the real estatc assets of the Company is

$ ) as of
.20
Dated as of :
Member
Dated as of :
Member
END OF SCHEDULE B

25



. e

SCHEDULE C - VALUE OF CONTRIBUTED PROPERTY

Underlying Property 704(c) Value Agreed Value

END OF SCHEDULE C

26



1. DEFINITIONS

EXHIBIT A - DEFINITIONS

In this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below:

1.1

from time to time.

1.2

1.3

1.4
being made:

Doc #02-484541.3

"4ct" means the New York Limited Liability Company Law, as amended and in effect

"4 greement” means this Operating Agreement of the Company, together with all the
Schedules and Exhibits hereto.

"4rticles of Organization” means the Articles of Organization of the Company filed
with the New York Department of State on December 1st, 2016.

(a)

(b)

"Available Cash" means, with respect to any period for which such calculation is

the sum of

(D

)

()

the Company's Net Income or Net Loss (as the case may be) for such
period (without regard to adjustments resulting from allocations
described in Sections 2.1 through 2.5 of Exhibit D);

Depreciation and all other non-cash charges deducted in determining
Net Income or Net Loss for such period;

the amount of any reduction in the reserves of the Company referred
to in clause 1.4(b)(6) below (including, without limitation, reductions
resulting because the Members determine such amounts are no longer
necessary);

the excess of proceeds from the sale, exchange, disposition, or
refinancing of Company propetty for such period over the gain
recognized from such sale, exchange, disposition, or refinancing
during such period (excluding Terminating Capital Transactions); and

all other cash received by the Company for such period that was not
included in determining Net Income or Net Loss for such period;

less the sum of’

(1

all principal debt payments made by the Company during such period;

A-1



e .

(2) capital expenditures made by the Company during such period;

(3)  investments made by the Company during such period in any entity
(including loans made thereto) to the extent that such investments are
not otherwise described in clauses (b)(1) or (b)(2), above;

(4)  all other expenditures and payments not deducted in determining Net
Income or Net Loss for such period;

(5)  any amount included in determining Net Income or Net Loss for such
period that was not received by the Company during such period;

(6)  the amount of any increase in reserves during such period which the
Managers determine to be necessary or appropriate in their sole and
absolute discretion; and

(7)  the amount of any working capital accounts and other cash or similar
balances which the Managers determine to be necessary or
appropriate, in their sole and absolute discretion.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Available Cash shall not include any cash received or
reductions in reserves, or take into account any disbursements made or reserves established, after
commencement of the dissolution and liquidation of the Company.

1.5 "Cupital Account” means the Capital Account maintained for a Member pursuant to
Exhibit C.
1.6 "Capital Contribution" means, with respect to any Member, any cash, cash

equivalents or the Agreed Value of Contributed Property which such Member contributes to the
Company pursuant to Sections 5.1 or 5.2 of the Agreement.

1.7 "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended and in effect from
time to time, as interpreted by the applicable regulations thereunder. Any reference herein to a
specific section or sections of the Code shall be deemed to include a reference to any corresponding
provision of future law.

1.8 "Company" shall refer to Northsal Holdings LLC.

1.9 "Distribution” means any cash and other property distributed to a Member by the
Company from the operations of the Company.

1.10  "Fiscal Year" means the fiscal year of the Company, which shall be the year ending
December 31. '

' A-2
Doc #02-484541.3



(" ("

1.11  "Manager" or "Managers" means the individual or individuals referenced in Section
4.3 of the Agreement, or any other Person or Persons elected by the Members to serve as a successor
Manager of the Company in accordance with and pursuant to Sections 3.7 and 4.10 of the
Agreement.

1.12  "Member" means each Person who or which executes a counterpart of this Agreement
as a Member and each Person who or which may hereafter become a party to this Agreement.

1.13  "Membership Interest” means an ownership interest in the Company owned by a
Member and includes any and all benefits to which the holder of such a Membership Interest may be
entitled as provided in this Agreement, together with all obligations of such Person to comply with
the terms and provisions of this Agreement. A Membership Interest may be expressed as a number
of Membership Units. “

1.14  "Membership Unit" means a fractional, undivided share of the Membership Interests
of all Members. The number of Membership Units outstanding and the Percentage Interest in the
Company represented by such Units are set forth in Schedule A of the Agreement, as such Schedule
may be amended from time to time. The ownership of Membership Units shall be evidenced by such
form of certificate for units as the Managers adopt from time to time.

1.15  "Net Income" means, for any taxable period, the excess, if any, of the Company's
items of income and gain for such taxable period over the Company's items of loss and deduction for
such taxable period. The items included in the calculation of Net Income shall be determined in
accordance with federal income tax accounting principles, subject to the specific adjustments
provided for in Exhibit C.

1.16  "Net Loss" means, for any taxable period, the excess, if any, of the Company's items
of loss and deduction for such taxable period over the Company's items of income and gain for such
taxable period. The items included in the calculation of Net Loss shall be determined in accordance
with federal income tax accounting principles, subject to the specific adjustments provided for in
Exhibit C.

1.17  "Percentage Interest” means, as to a Member, its interest in the Company as
determined by dividing the Membership Units owned by such Member by the total number of
Membership Units then outstanding and as specified in Schedule A of the Agreement, as such
Schedule may be amended from time to time.

1.18  "Person"means any corporation, governmental authority, limited liability company,
partnership, trust, unincorporated association or other entity.

1.19  "Regulations” means the Income Tax Regulations promulgated under the Code, as

such regulations may be amended from time to time (including corresponding provisions of
succeeding regulations).

Doc #02-484541.3



(" (™

1.20  "Terminating Capital Transaction” means any sale or other disposition of all or
substantially all of the assets of the Company or a related series of transactions that, taken together,
result in the sale or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company.

END OF EXHIBIT A

A4
Doc #02-484541.3



o e

EXHIBIT B - OPERATING PROCEDURES

1. MEMBERS' ACTION

1.1 Annual Mecting. The annual meeting of the Members of the Company for the
transaction of such other business as may properly come before the meeting, shall be held at the
principal business office of the Company or at such other place as the Managers shall determine on
any business day during the month of April of each year, on such date and time as the Managers shall
designate.

1.2 Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Members, except as otherwise provided by
law, may be called to be held at the principal business office of the Company or elsewhere at any
time by any Manager, and shall be called by any Manager at the request in writing of the Members
holding not less than 20% of the Membership Units entitled to vote. Such request and the notice of
the meeting shall state the purpose or purposes of the proposed meeting. Business transacted at a
special meeting shall be confined to the objects stated in the call and matters germane thereto.

1.3 Notice of Members' Meetings. Written notice of every meeting of Members shall be
given in the manner required by law not less than five (5) nor more than sixty (60) days before the
date of the meeting to each Member entitled to vote at the meeting. If mailed, such notice is given
five (5) days after it is deposited in the United States Mail, with postage thereon prepaid, directed to
the Member at his/her/its address as it appears in the records of the Company, or if he/she/it shall
have filed with the Company a written request that notices to him/her/it be mailed to some other
address, then directed to such other address. The notice shall state the place, date and hour of the
meeting and, shall indicate that it is being issued by or at the direction of the person or persons
calling the meeting. Notice of a special meeting shall also state the purpose or purposes for which
the meeting is called.

1.4  Waiver of Notice. Notice of a Members' meeting need not be given to any Member
who submits a signed waiver of notice, in person or by proxy, whether before or after the meeting.
The attendance of any Member at a Members' meeting, in person or by proxy, without protesting
prior to the conclusion of the meeting the lack of notice of such meeting shall constitute a waiver of
notice by him or her.

1.5 Quorum. Atevery meeting of the Members, except as otherwise provided by law or
these Operating Procedures, a quorum must be present for the transaction of business and a quorum
shall consist of the Members holding not less than fifty-one percent (51%) of all Membership Units
entitled to vote, present either in person or by proxy. When a quorum is once present to organize a
meeting, it is not broken by the subsequent withdrawal from the meeting of any Members.

1.6  Adjournments. The Members who are present in person or by proxy at any meeting
of Members shall have the power by a vote of not less than a majority of all Membership Units

B-1

Doc #02-484541.3



o .

entitled to vote to adjourn the meeting from time to time. Subject to any notice required by law, at
any adjourned meeting any business may be transacted which might have been transacted on the
original date of the meeting. Notice of an adjourned meeting need not be given if the time and place
of the adjourned meeting are announced at the original meeting.

1.7 Voting Proxies. All questions that shall come before a meeting shall be decided by
the vote required by this Operating Agreement, A Member may vote either in person or by written
proxy signed by him or her or by a duly authorized attorney-in-fact and delivered to the Company.

‘No proxy shall be valid after the expiration of eleven (11) months from the date thereof unless
otherwise provided in the proxy. Every proxy shall be revocable at the pleasure of the person
executing it ot his or her personal representatives, unless it is entitled "irrevocable proxy," in which
event its revocability shall be determined by the law of the State of New York in effect at the time.

1.8 Meetings by Conference Telephone. Any one or more Members may participateina
meeting of such Members by means of a conference telephone or similar communications equipment
by means of which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other. Participation by such
means shall constitute presence in person at the meeting.

1.9 Action By Members Without A Meeting. Whenever Members are required or
permitted to take any action by vote, such action may be taken without a meeting, without prior
notice and without a vote, if a consent or consents in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall
be either signed by all Members who hold voting rights necessary to approve such action, or
consented to by all such Members by electronic communication (email).

2. MANAGER'S ACTION

2.1  Election and Tenure. The Company shall have such Managers as is set forth in
Article 4 herein. The initial Managers shall be the parties referenced in Section 4.3 of the Agreement
The number of Managers of the Company may be amended from time to time by vote of the
Members in accordance with Section 3.7 of the Agreement. Each Manager shall hold office until the
next annual meeting of Members or until a successot shall have been elected and qualified as
provided in Section 4.3 of this Agreement.

22  Voting. At all meetings of the Managers, except as otherwise provided by the
Atticles of Organization, these operating procedures or by law notwithstanding this Agreement, a
unanimous vote of the Managers shall be required for the transaction of business.

2.3  Procedure. The order of business and all other matters of procedure at every meeting
of Managers may be determined by the presiding officer or Manager of the meeting.

B-2

Doc #02-484541.3



s ~

2.4  Action Without a Meeting. Any action required or permitted to be taken by a vote of
the Managers may be taken without a vote, if the number of Managers sufficient to authorize such
action at a meeting at which all Managers entitled to vote thereon were present and voted, consent
thereto in writing and the writing is filed with the records of the Company.

2.5  Meetings by Conference Telephone. Any one or more of the Managers may
participate in a meeting of the Managers by means of a conference telephone or similar
communications equipment by means of which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each
other. Participation by such means shall constitute presence in person at a meeting.

3. OFFICERS

3.1  Officers. The Managers may designate one or more individuals as officers of the
Company, who shall have such titles including, without limitation, President, and who shall exercise
and perform all ministerial functions associated with the operations of the Company and such other
functions as shall be specifically assigned to them from time to time by the Managers. Any officer
may be removed by the Managers at any time, with or without cause. Each officer shall hold office
until his or her successor is designated and qualified. Any number of offices may be held by the
same individual. The salaries and other compensation of the officers shall be fixed by the Managers.

Vacancies in any office shall be filled by the Managers.

3.2 Temporary Transfer of Powers and Duties. In case of the absence or illness of any

officer of the Company, or for any other reason that the Managers may deem sufficient, the Managers
may delegate and assign, for the time being, the powers and duties of any officer to any other officer.

END OF EXHIBIT B

B-3
Doc #02-484541.3






(" ("

EXHIBIT C - TAX DEFINITIONS AND CAPITAL ACCOUNT MAINTENANCE

1.  DEFINITIONS

For purposes of the Agreement, including the Exhibits thereto, the following terms shall have
the following meanings:

1.1 "Adjusted Capital Account" means the Capital Account maintained for each Member as
of the end of each Company taxable year (i) increased by any amounts which such Member is
obligated to restore pursuant to any provision of this Agreement or is deemed to be obligated to
restore pursuant to the penultimate sentences of Regulations Sections 1.704-2(g)(1) and 1.704-2(1)(5)
and (ii) decreased by the items described in Regulations Sections 1.704-1(b)(2)(ii)(d)(4),
1.704-1(b)(2)(ii)(d)(5), and 1.704-1(b)(2)(ii)(d)(6). The foregoing definition of Adjusted Capital
Account is intended to comply with the provisions of Regulations Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(ii)(d) and
shall be interpreted consistently therewith,

1.2 "Adjusted Capital Account Deficit" means, with respect to any Member, the deficit
balance, if any, in such Member's Adjusted Capital Account as of the end of the relevant Company
taxable year.

1.3 "Adjusted Property" means any property the Carrying Value of which has been adjusted
pursuant to this Exhibit C. Once an Adjusted Property is deemed distributed by, and re-contributed
to, the Company for federal income tax purposes upon a termination thereof pursuant to Section 708
of the Code, such property shall thereafter constitute a Contributed Property until the Carrying Value
of such property is further adjusted pursuant to this Exhibit C.

14  "Agreed Value" means (i) in the case of any Contributed Property set forth in
Schedule C-1 and as of the time of its contribution to the Company, the Agreed Value of such
property as set forth in Schedule C-1; (ii) in the case of any Contributed Property not set forth in
Schedule C-1 and as of the time of its contribution to the Company, the 704(c) Value of such
property, reduced by any liabilities either assumed by the Company upon such contribution or to
which such property is subject when contributed, and (iii) in the case of any property distributed to a
Member by the Company, the Company's Carrying Value of such property at the time such property
is distributed, reduced by any indebtedness either assumed by such Member upon such distribution
or to which such property is subject at the time of distribution as determined under Section 752 of
the Code and the Regulations thereunder.

1.5 "Book-Tax Disparities" means, with respect to any item of Contributed Property or
Adjusted Property, as of the date of any determination, the difference between the Carrying Value of
such Contributed Property or Adjusted Property and the adjusted basis thereof for federal income tax
purposes as of such date. A Member's share of the Company's Book-Tax Disparities in all of its
Contributed Property and Adjusted Property will be reflected by the difference between such
Member's Capital Account balance as maintained pursuant to this Exhibit C, and the hypothetical
balance of such Member's Capital Account computed as if it had been maintained strictly in
accordance with federal income tax accounting principles.

C-1
Doc #02-484541.3



s .

1.6  "Carrying Value' means (i) with respect to a Contributed Property or Adjusted Property,
the 704(c) Value of such property, reduced (but not below zero) by all Depreciation with respect to
such Property charged to the Members' Capital Accounts following the contribution of or adjustment
with respect to such Property, and (ii) with respect to any other Company property, the adjusted basis
of such property for federal income tax purposes, all as of the time of determination. The Carrying
Value of any property shall be adjusted from time to time in accordance with this Exhibit C, and to
reflect changes, additions or other adjustments to the Carrying Value for dispositions and
acquisitions of Company properties, as deemed appropriate by the Managers.

1.7 "Company Minimum Gain" means "partnership minimum gain" within the meaning set
forth in Regulations Section 1.704-2(b)(2), and the amount of Company Minimum Gain, as well as
any net increase or decrease in a Company Minimum Gain, for a Company taxable year shall be
determined in accordance with the rules of Regulations Section 1.704-2(d).

1.8 "Contributed Property" means each property or other asset, in such form as may be
permitted by the Act, but excluding cash, contributed or deemed contributed to the Company
(including deemed contributions to the Company on termination and reconstitution thereof pursuant
to Section 708 of the Code). Once the Carrying Value of a Contributed Property is adjusted pursuant
to this Exhibit C, such property shall no longer constitute a Contributed Property for purposes of this
Exhibit C, but shall be deemed an Adjusted Property for such purposes.

1.9  "Member Minimum Gain" means an amount, with respect to cach Member Nonrecourse
Debt, equal to the Company Minimum Gain that would result if such Member Nonrecourse Debt
were treated as a Nonrecourse Liability, determined in accordance with Regulations
Section 1.704-2(1)(3).

1.10 "Member Nonrecourse Debt" means "partner nonrecourse debt" within the meaning set
forth in Regulations Section 1.704-2(b)(4).

1.11 "Member Nonrecourse Deductions" means "partner nonrecourse deductions” within the
meaning set forth in Regulations Section 1.704-2(i)(2), and the amount of Member Nonrecourse
Deductions with respect to a Member Nonrecourse Debt for a Company taxable year shall be
determined in accordance with the rules of Regulations Section 1.704-2(i)(2).

1.12 "Nonrecourse Built-in Gain" means, with respect to any Contributed Properties or
Adjusted Properties that are subject to a mortgage or negative pledge securing a Nonrecourse
Liability, the amount of any taxable gain that would be allocated to the Members pursuant to Section
3.2 of Exhibit D if such properties were disposed of in a taxable transaction in full satisfaction of
such liabilities and for no other consideration.

1.13 "Nonrecourse Deductions" has the meaning set forth in Regulations
Section 1.704-2(b)(1), and the amount of Nonrecourse Deductions for a Company taxable year shall
be determined in accordance with the rules of Regulations Section 1.704-2(c).

1.14 "Nonrecourse Liability" has the meaning set forth in Regulations Section 1.752-1(a)(2).

C-2
Doc #02-484541.3



(\\ (”\

1.15 "Recapture Income" means any gain recognized by the Company upon the disposition of
any property or asset of the Company, which gain is characterized as ordinary income because it
represents the recapture of deductions previously taken with respect to such property or asset.

1.16 "Residual Gain" or "Residual Loss" means any item of gain or loss, as the case may be,
of the Company recognized for federal income tax purposes resulting from a sale, exchange or other
disposition of Contributed Property or Adjusted Property, to the extent such item of gain or loss is
not allocated pursuant to Section 3.2(a)(1) or Section 3.2(b)(1) of Exhibit D to eliminate Book-Tax
Disparities.

1.17 "704(c) Value" of any Contributed Property means the value of such property as set forth
in Schedule C or if no value is set forth in Schedule C, the fair market value of such property or other
consideration at the time of contribution as determined by the Managers using such reasonable
method of valuation as they may adopt; provided, however, that the 704(c) Value of any property
deemed contributed to the Company for federal income tax purposes upon termination and
reconstitution thereof pursuant to Section 708 of the Code shall be determined in accordance with
this Exhibit C. Subject to the provisions of this Exhibit C, the Managers shall, in his or their sole
and absolute discretion, use such method as he or they deem reasonable and appropriate to allocate
the aggregate of the 704(c) Values of Contributed Properties in a single or integrated transaction
among the separate properties on a basis proportional to their respective fair market values.

1.18 "Unrealized Gain" attributable to any item of Company property means, as of any date of
determination, the excess, if any, of (i) the fair market value of such property (as determined under
this Exhibit C) as of such date, over (ii) the Carrying Value of such property (prior to any adjustment
to be made pursuant to this Exhibit C) as of such date.

1.19 "Unrealized Loss" attributable to any item of Company property means, as of any date of
determination, the excess, if any, of (i) the Carrying Value of such property (prior to any adjustment
to be made pursuant to this Exhibit C) as of such date, over (ii) the fair market value of such property
(as determined under this Exhibit C) as of such date.

2. CAPITAL ACCOUNTS OF THE MEMBERS

2.1 The Company shall maintain for each Member a separate Capital Account in accordance
with the rules of Regulations Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv). Such Capital Account shall be increased by
(i) the amount of all Capital Contributions and any other deemed contributions made by such
Member to the Company pursuant to this Agreement and (ii) all items of Company income and gain
(including income and gain exempt from tax) computed in accordance with Section 2.2 hereof and
allocated to such Member pursuant to Exhibit D, and decreased by (x) the amount of cash or Agreed
Value of all actual and deemed distributions of cash or property made to such Member pursuant to
this Agreement and (y) all items of Company deduction and loss computed in accordance with
Section 2.2 hereof and allocated to such Member pursuant to Exhibit D.

2.2 For purposes of computing the amount of any item of income, gain, deduction or loss to
be reflected in the Members' Capital Accounts, unless otherwise specified in this Agreement, the
C-3

Doc #02-484541.3



(" ("

determination, recognition and classification of any such item shall be the same as its determination,
recognition and classification for federal income tax purposes determined in accordance with
Section 703(a) of the Code (for this purpose all items of income, gain, loss or deduction required to
be stated separately pursuant to Section 703(a)(1) of the Code shall be included in taxable income or
loss), with the following adjustments:

(a)

(b)

©

(d)

(e)

6]

Except as otherwise provided in Regulations Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(m), the
computation of all items of income, gain, loss and deduction shall be made
without regard to any election under Section 754 of the Code which may be made
by the Company, provided that the amounts of any adjustments to the adjusted
bases of the assets of the Company made pursuant to Section 734 of the Code as a
result of the distribution of property by the Company to a Member (to the extent
that such adjustments have not previously been reflected in the Members' Capital
Accounts) shall be reflected in the Capital Accounts of the Members in the
manner and subject to the limitations prescribed in Regulations
Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(m)(4).

The computation of all items of income, gain, and deduction shall be made
without regard to the fact that items described in Sections 705(a)(1)(B) or
705(a)(2)(B) of the Code are not includable in gross income or are neither
currently deductible nor capitalized for federal income tax purposes.

Any income, gain or loss attributable to the taxable disposition of any Company
property shall be determined as if the adjusted basis of such property as of such
date of disposition were equal in amount to the Company's Carrying Value with
respect to such property as of such date.

In lieu of the depreciation, amortization, and other cost recovery deductions taken
into account in computing such taxable income or loss, there shall be taken into
account Depreciation for such fiscal year.

In the event the Carrying Value of any Company Asset is adjusted pursuant to
Section 2.4 hereof, the amount of any such adjustment shall be taken into account
as gain or loss from the disposition of such asset.

Any items specifically allocated under Article 3 of Exhibit D shall not be taken
into account.

2.3 Generally, a transferee (including an Assignee) of a Membership Unit shall succeed to a
pro rata portion of the Capital Account of the transferor; provided, however, that, if the transfer
causes a termination of the Company under Section 708(b)(1)(B) of the Code, the Company's
properties shall be deemed solely for federal income tax purposes, to have been distributed in
liquidation of the Company to the holders of Membership Units (including such transferee) and re-
contributed by such Persons in reconstitution of the Company. In such event, the Carrying Values of

Doc #02-484541.3

C-4



s e

the Company properties shall be adjusted immediately prior to such deemed distribution pursuant to
Section 2.4(b) hereof. The Capital Accounts of such reconstituted Company shall be maintained in
accordance with the principles of this Exhibit C. '

2.4 (a) Consistent with the provisions of Regulations Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(f), and as
provided in Section 2.4(b) hereof, the Carrying Value of all Company assets shall be adjusted
upward or downward to reflect any Unrealized Gain or Unrealized Loss attributable to such
Company property, as of the times of the adjustments provided in Section 2.4(b) hereof, as if such
Unrealized Gain or Unrealized Loss had been recognized on an actual sale of each such property and
allocated pursuant to Exhibit D.

(b)  Such adjustments shall be made as of the following times:

(1) immediately prior to the acquisition of an additional interest in the
Company by any new or existing Member in exchange for more than a de
minimis Capital Contribution;

(2) immediately prior to the distribution by the Company to a Member of more
than a de minimis amount of property as consideration for an interest in the
Company; and

(3) immediately prior to the liquidation of the Company within the meaning of
Regulations Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(ii)(g);

provided, however, that adjustments pursuant to clauses (1) and (2) above shall be made only if the
Managers determine that such adjustments are necessary or appropriate to reflect the relative
economic interests of the Members in the Company.

(¢) Inaccordance with Regulations Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(e), the Carrying Value of
Company assets distributed in kind shall be adjusted upward or downward to reflect any Unrealized
Gain or Unrealized Loss attributable to such Company propetty, as of the time any such asset is
distributed.

(d) Indetermining Unrealized Gain or Unrealized Loss for purposes of this Exhibit C
C, the aggregate cash amount and fair market value of all Company assets (including cash or cash
equivalents) shall be determined and allocated among the assets of the Company by the Managers, or
in the case of a liquidating distribution pursuant to Article 8 of the Agreement, by the Liquidator,
using such reasonable methods of valuation as they or it, as the case may be, may adopt.

2.5 The provisions of this Agreement (including this Exhibit C, and other Exhibits to the
Agreement) relating to the maintenance of Capital Accounts are intended to comply with Regulations
Section 1.704-1(b), and shall be interpreted and applied in a manner consistent with such
Regulations. In the event the Managers shall determine that it is prudent to modify (i) the manner in
which the Capital Accounts, or any debits or credits thereto (including, without limitation, debits or
credits relating to liabilities which are secured by contributed or distributed property or which are
assumed by the Company, or any Member are computed or (ii) the manner in which items are

C-5



. .

allocated among the Members for federal income tax purposes in order to comply with such
Regulations or to comply with Section 704(c) of the Code, the Managers may make such
modification without regard to Article 5 of the Agreement, provided that it is not likely to have a
material effect on the amounts distributable to any Person pursuant to Article 8 of the Agreement
upon the dissolution of the Company. The Managers also shall (i) make any adjustments that are
necessary or appropriate to maintain equality between the Capital Accounts of the Members and the
amount of Company capital reflected on the Company's balance sheet, as computed for book
purposes, in accordance with Regulations Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(q), and (ii) make any appropriate
modifications in the event unanticipated events might otherwise cause this Agreement not to comply
with Regulations Section 1.704-1(b). In addition, the Managers may adopt and employ such
methods and procedures for (i) the maintenance of book and tax capital accounts, (ii) the
determination and allocation of adjustments under Sections 704(c), 734 and 743 of the Code, (iii) the
determination of Net Income, Net Loss, taxable income, taxable loss and items thereof under this
Agreement and pursuant to the Code, (iv) the adoption of reasonable conventions and methods for
the valuation of assets and the determination of tax basis, (v) the allocation of asset value and tax
basis, and (vi) conventions for the determination of cost recovery, depreciation and amortization
deductions, as the Managers determine in his or their sole discretion are necessary or appropriate to
execute the provisions of this Agreement and to comply with federal and state tax laws.

3.  NOINTEREST

No interest shall be paid by the Company on Capital Contributions or on balances in Members'
Capital Accounts.

4. NO WITHDRAWAL
No Member shall be entitled to withdraw any part of his Capital Contribution or his Capital

Account or to receive any distribution from the Company, except as provided in Articles 5 and 8 of
the Agreement.

END OF EXHIBIT C

C-6



e e

EXHIBIT D - ALLOCATION RULES

1. REGULAR ALLOCATION RULES.

Except as otherwise provided in this Exhibit D, the Company's items of income, gain, loss
and deduction (computed in accordance with Exhibit C) shall be allocated among the Members in
each taxable year (or portion thereof) as follows:

1.1 Net Income shall be allocated to the Members in accordance with their respective
Percentage Interests;

1.2 After giving effect to the special allocations set forth in Article 2 of this Exhibit D,
Net Losses shall be allocated to the Members in accordance with their respective Percentage
Interests;

1.3 For purposes of Regulations Section 1.752-3(a), the Members agree that Nonrecourse
Liabilities of the Company in excess of the sum of (i) the amount of Company Minimum Gain and
(i) the total amount of Nonrecourse Built-in Gain shall be allocated among the Members in
accordance with their respective Percentage Interests; and

1.4 Any gain allocated to the Members upon the sale or other taxable disposition of any
Company asset shall to the extent possible, after taking into account other required allocations of
gain pursuant to Article 2 of this Exhibit D, be characterized as Recapture Income in the same
proportions and to the same extent as such Members have been allocated any deductions directly or
indirectly giving rise to the treatment of such gains as Recapture Income.

2. SPECIAL ALLOCATION RULES

Notwithstanding any other provision of the Agreement or this Exhibit D, the
following special allocations shall be made in the following order:

2.1 Minimum Gain Chargeback. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Agreement or any
other provisions of this Exhibit D, if there is a net decrease in Company Minimum Gain during any
Company taxable year, each Member shall be specially allocated items of Company income and gain
for such year (and, if necessary, subsequent years) in an amount equal to such Member's share of the
net decrease in Company Minimum Gain, as determined under Regulations Section 1.704-2(g).
Allocations pursuant to the previous sentence shall be made in proportion to the respective amounts
required to be allocated to cach Member pursuant thereto. The items to be so allocated shall be
determined in accordance with Regulations Section 1.704-2(f)(6). This Section 2.1 is intended to
comply with the minimum gain chargeback requirements in Regulations Section 1.704-2(f) and shall
be interpreted consistently therewith. Solely for purposes of this Section 2.1, each Membet's
Adjusted Capital Account Deficit shall be determined prior to any other allocations pursuant to
Article 1 of this Exhibit D of Member Minimum Gain during such Company taxable year.

D-1
Doc #02-484541.3
Doc #02-484541.3



o .

22  Member Minimum Gain Chargeback. Notwithstanding any of the provisions of the
Agreement or any other provisions of this Exhibit D (except Section 2,1 hereof), if there is a net
decrease in Member Minimum Gain attributable to a Member Nonrecourse Debt during any
Company taxable year, each Member who has a share of the Member Minimum Gain aitributable to
such Member Nonrecourse Debt, determined in accordance with Regulations Section 1.704-2(i)(5),
shall be specially allocated items of Company income and gain for such year (and, if necessary,
subsequent years) in an amount equal to such Member's share of the net decrease in Member
Minimum Gain attributable to such Member Nonrecourse Debt, determined in accordance with
Regulations Section 1.704-2(i)(5). Allocations pursuant to the previous sentence shall be made in
proportion to the respective amounts required to be allocated to each Member pursuant thereto. The
items to be so allocated shall be determined in accordance with Regulations Section 1.704-2(i)(4).
This Section 2.2 is intended to comply with the minimum gain chargeback requirement in such
Section of the Regulations and shall be interpreted consistently therewith. Solely for purposes of this
Section 2.2, each Member's Adjusted Capital Account Deficit shall be determined prior to any other
allocations pursuant to Article 1 of this Exhibit D with respect to such Company taxable year, other
than allocations pursuant to Section 2.1 hereof.

2.3 Qualified Income Offset. In the event any Member unexpectedly receives any
adjustments, allocations or distributions described in Regulations Sections 1.704-1(b)(2)(ii)(d)(4),
1.704-1(b)2)(1i)(d)(5), or 1,704-1(b)(2)(ii)(d)(6), and after giving effect to the allocations required
under Sections 2.1 and 2.2 hereof, such Member has an Adjusted Capital Account Deficit, items of
Company income and gain (consisting of a pro rata portion of each item of Company income,
including gross income and gain for the Company taxable year) shall be specifically allocated to such
Member in an amount and manner sufficient to eliminate, to the extent required by the Regulations,
its Adjusted Capital Account Deficit created by such adjustments, allocations or distributions as
quickly as possible.

24  Nonrecourse Deductions. Nonrecourse Deductions for any Company taxable year
shall be allocated to the Members in accordance with their respective Percentage Interests. If the
Managers determine in his or her good faith discretion that the Company's Nonrecourse Deductions
must be allocated in a different ratio to satisfy the safe harbor requirements of the Regulations
promulgated under Section 704(b) of the Code, the Managers are authorized to revise the prescribed
ratio to the numerically closest ratio for such Company taxable year which would satisfy such
requirements.

2.5  Member Nonrecourse Deductions. Any Member Nonrecourse Deductions for any
Company taxable year shall be specially allocated to the Member who bears the economic risk of
loss with respect to the Member Nonrecourse Debt to which such Member Nonrecourse Deductions
are attributable in accordance with Regulations Section 1.704-2(i).

2.6  Code Section 754 Adjustments. To the extent an adjustment to the adjusted tax basis
of any Company asset pursuant to Section 734(b) or 743(b) of the Code is required, pursuant to
Regulations Section 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(m), to be taken into account in determining Capital Accounts,
the amount of such adjustment to the Capital Accounts shall be treated as an item of gain (if the
adjustment increases the basis of the asset) or loss (if the adjustment decreases such basis), and such
item of gain or loss shall be specially allocated to the Members in a manner consistent with the

D-2
Doc #02-484541.3



s .

manner in which their Capital Accounts are required to be adjusted pursuant to such Section of the
Regulations.

27  Curative Allocations. The allocations set forth in Section 2.1 through 2.6 of this
Exhibit D (the "Regulatory Allocations") are intended to comply with certain requirements of the
Regulations under Section 704(b) of the Code. The Regulatory Allocations may not be consistent
with the manner in which the Members intend to divide Company distributions. Accordingly, the
Managers are hereby authorized to divide other allocations of income, gain, deduction and loss
among the Members so as to prevent the Regulatory Allocations from distorting the manner in which
Company distributions will be divided among the Members. In general, the Members anticipate that
this will be accomplished by specially allocating other items of income, gain, loss and deduction
among the Members so that the net amount of the Regulatory Allocations and such special
allocations to each person is zero. However, the Managers will have discretion to accomplish this
result in any reasonable manner; provided, however, that no allocation pursuant to this Section 2.7
shall cause the Company to fail to comply with the requirements of Regulations Sections 1.704-

1(b)(2)(1i)(d), -2(e) or -2(1).
3, ALLOCATIONS FOR TAX PURPOSES

3.1  Except as otherwise provided in this Article 3, for federal income tax purposes, each
item of income, gain, loss and deduction shall be allocated among the Members in the same manner
as its correlative item of "book" income, gain, loss or deduction is allocated pursuant to Atrticles 1
and 2 of this Exhibit D.

3.2  Inanattempt to eliminate Book-Tax Disparities attributable to a Contributed Property
or Adjusted Property, items of income, gain, loss, and deduction shall be allocated for federal income
tax purposes among the Members as follows:

(a) In the case of a Contributed Property, such items attributable thereto shall:

M be allocated among the Members consistent with the principles of
Section 704(c) of the Code and the Regulations thereunder to take
into account the variation between the 704(c) Value of such property
and its adjusted basis at the time of contribution; and

(i)  any item of Residual Gain or Residual Loss attributable to a
Contributed Property shall be allocated among the Members in the
same manner as its correlative item of "book" gain or loss is allocated
pursuant to Articles 1 and 2 of this Exhibit D.

(b) In the case of an Adjusted Property, such items shall:
) first, be allocated among the Members in a manner consistent with

the principles of Section 704(c) of the Code and the Regulations
thereunder to take into account the Unrealized Gain or Unrealized

D-3
Doc #02-484541.3



o ~

Loss attributable to such property and the allocations thereof pursuant
to Exhibit C, and

(i)  second, in the event such property was originally a Contributed
Property, be allocated among the Members in a manner consistent
with Section 3.2(a) of this Exhibit D; and

(iii) any item of Residual Gain or Residual Loss attributable to an
Adjusted Property shall be allocated among the Members in the same
manner its corrclative item of "book" gain or loss is allocated
pursuant to Articles 1 and 2 of this Exhibit D.

| (©) all other items of income, gain, loss and deduction shall be allocated among
the Members in the same manner as their correlative item of "book" gain or
loss is allocated pursuant to Articles 1 and 2 of this Exhibit D.

3.3  To the extent that the Treasury Regulations promulgated pursuant to Section 704(c) of
the Code permit the Company to utilize alternative methods to eliminate the disparities between the
Carrying Value of property and its adjusted basis, the Managers shall have the authority to elect the
method to be used by the Company and such election shall be binding on all Members. It is
anticipated that the Managers will elect the "traditional method" under Section 704(c) of the Code
with respect to property contributed as of the date hereof.

4. NO WITHDRAWAL
No Member shall be entitled to withdraw any part of his Capital Contribution or his Capital

Account or (o receive any distribution from the Company, except as provided in Articles 5 and 8 of
the Agreement.

END OF EXHIBIT D

D-4



e e

EXHIBIT E-
CROSS INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT

CROSS INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made this ___dayof , by and among _

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the parties hereto are of

LLC (the "Company"), and

WHEREAS, the parties hereto are willing to provide personal guarantees for the certain
indebtedness of the Company to certain lending institutions, and all of the parties hereto wish to
define their obligations of contribution and to indemnify each other for personal liabilities for the
Company's indebtedness to said lending institutions.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises, and for other good and lawful
consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. Guarantee Obligations. The parties agree that in the event that the Company or any

party hereto should be compelled to pay any portion of the indebtedness owed by the Company, or
become subject to any suit, demand or action on such indebtedness, all of the parties to this
Agreement shall be subject to a contribution and indemnification obligation with respect to such
party such that any persongl or guaranty liability on obligations of the Company for the indebtedness
shall be borne by the parties in and limited pro rata, based on each parties’ Percentage Interest in the

Company.



It is the intention of the parties that none of the parties shall bear liability for obligations of the
Company for the indebtedness in excess of each of the party's percentage indemnification obligation
under this Agreement. Accordingly, should any party refuse to participate in satisfaction of personal
or guaranty liability of a party hereto on obligations for the indebtedness, the refusing party's
obligation under this Agreement may be sued upon and judgment obtained based upon this
Agreement, in any court of competent jurisdiction.

2. Notice. Should any party be subjected to a claim, suit, action or other proceeding
seeking satisfaction on personal liability or guaranty of obligations of the debt of the Company for
the indebtedness, such party shall be obligated to notify in writing each of the other parties to this
Agreement of such claim, suit, action or other proceeding within twenty (20) days after receiving
notice of such claim, suit, action or proceeding. The remaining parties shall have the right to
participate in the defense, settlement or compromise of such matter as a precondition to their
obligation of indemnification hereunder. No such action shall be compromised or settled without the
consent of a majority of the parties hereto. Upon a majority-approved compromise or settlement, all
of the parties shall be bound to such compromise or settlement.

3. Jurisdiction. Each of the parties hereto consents to the jurisdiction of the Supreme
Court of the State of New York, and venue within the County of Monroe, with respect to any action
brought to enforce the terms of this Agreement against such party.

4, Benefit. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the
parties and their respective legal representatives, successors, permitted assigns, heirs, executors and

administrators.



(" ("

5. Nonassignability, This Agreement may not be assigned or transferred without the
prior written consent of the nonassigning party.

6. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with
the laws of the State of New York.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hereunder set their hands and seals the day

and year first above written,

Name: Name:




N. Y. S. DEPARTMENT (/\ETATE (A\
DIVISION OF CORPORATIuwS AND STATE RECORDS ALBANY, NY 12231-0001

FILING RECEIPT

JOCUMENT TYPE: CERTIFICATE OF PUBLICATION (DOM LLC) COUNTY: MONR

FTLED:04/19/2019 DURATION: ****%*%x* CASH#:190419000110 FILM #:190419000105

PHILLIPS LYTLE LLP
1400 FIRST FEDERAL PLAZA

ROCHESTER, NY 14614

ADDRESS FOR PROCESS:

REGISTERED AGENT:

SERVICE COMPANY: ** NO SERVICE COMPANY **%* SERVICE CODE: 00
FEES 60.00 PAYMENTS 60.00
FILING 50.00 CASH 0.00
TAX _ 0.00 CHECK 60.00
CERT 0.00 CHARGE 0.00
OPIES 10.00 : DRAWDOWN 0.00
HANDLING 0.00 OPAL 0.00
REFUND 0.00

DOS-1025 (04/2007)



(" ("
STATE OF NEW YORK

DEPARTMENT OF STATE

I hereby certify that the annexed copy has been compared with the
original document in the custody of the Secretary of State and that the same
is a true copy of said original.

. WITNESS my hand and official seal of the
ARG Department of State, at the City of Albany,
on April 22, 2019.

Whitney Clark
Deputy Secretary of State

Rev. 06/13



(o (M _
190419000/03

CERTIFICATE OF PUBLICATION
OF
NORTHSAL HOLDINGS LLC

Under Section 206 of the Limited Liability Company Law

The undersigned is an authorized person of Northsal Holdings LLC.

The artic!es of organization were filed by the New York State Department of State on
January 31, 2109. |

The published notices described in the annexed affidavits of publication 'contain all of the
information required by the above-mentioned section of the Limited Liability Company Law.

The newspapers desqribed in such affidavits of publication satisfy the requirements set
forth in the Limited Liability Company Law and the designation made by the County Clerk.

I certify the foregoing statements to be true under _penalties of perjury.

/

Anthony J. Iacchetta
Authorized Person

Date: March 26,2019

190419000105



=JEWISH
tice 1724 LE DGER An Independent Weekly of Jewish News & Views

~ AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION

Affidavit of Publication Under Section 206 of the Limited Liability Company Law, State of New York,

County of Monroe ss:
The undersigned is the publisher of THE JEWISH LEDGER NEWSPAPER, a weekly newspaper published
in Rochester, New York. A notice regarding

NORTHSAL HOI, L

was published in said newspaper once in each week for § successive week(s), commencing on the

th day of Eebruary, 2019, and ending on the 14th day of March, 2019,

The text of the notice as published in said newspaper is as set forth below, or in the annexed exhibit,
This newspaper has been designated by the Clerk of Monroe County for this purpose.

NOTICE OF ORGANIZATION
Notice of formation of limited iiabllity company

(LLC). Name: NORTHSAL HOLDINGS LLC (the

) Company). Articles of Organlzation filed with
(L C/‘qu@ ' Secretary of State of NY (SSNY) on 01/31/19, NY
office location: Monroe County. SSNY s designated

as agent upon whom process agalnst the Company
B arbara Morgenstern}i'l}susn&k may be served. SSNY shall mail a copy of any such
process to: ¢/o the Company, 350 West Commercial
Street, East Rochester, New York 14445, The
Company is to be managed by one or more
managers. No member of the Company shall be
liable in thelr capacity as members of the Company
for debts, obligations or liabilities of the Company.

. r At—r No member of the Company, solely by reason of

- Sworn to before me on this day being a member, is an agent of the Company for
V\A "'C-C the purpose of its business, and no member shall.

of , 2019 have the authority to act for the Company solely by

virtue of being a member. Purpose/character of the

M Company: any and all lawful activities.
s

Notary Public .

CHRISTIAN T LORET
Notary public - State of New York
NO..01L06380735
" Qualified in Monroe County
y Commission Expires Sep 10, 2022

2535 BRIGHTON-HENRIETTA T.L. RD. ROCHESTER, NY 14623 ¢ (585) 427-2434



10of1

AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION

Under Section 206 of the Limited Liability Company Law
STATE OF NEW YORK
County of Monroe, ss.:

The undersigned is the authorized designee of Suzanne F. Huettner/Publisher of The Daily Record, a daily
newspaper published in Rochester, New York. A notice regarding NORTHSAL HOLDINGS LLC was published in
said newspaper once in each week for six successive weeks, commencing on 2/11/2019 and ending on
3/18/2019, The text of the notice as published in said newspaper is as set forth below, or in the annexed
exhibit. This newspaper has been designated by the Clerk of Monroe County for this purpose.

Swarn to before me on this 18th day of March, 2019

Wbl )

i 4 Radpel Zachary
Events & Marketing Coordinator Notary Public, State of New York
: Commission Expires 01/22/2023

NOTICE OF ORGANIZATION

RACHEL ZACHARY
Notary Public - State of New York
NO. 01ZA6386252
Qualified in Monroe County
My Commission Expires Jan 22, 2023
L o o

Notice of formation of limited
liability company (LLC), Name:
Northsal  Holdings LLC (the
Company), Arlicles of Organization
filed with Secretary of State of NY
(SSNY) on 01/3V/19. NY office
location; Monroe County, SSNY is
designated as agent upon whom
process against the Company may be
served. SSNY shall mail a copy of
any such process to; clo the
Company, 350 West Commercial
Street, East Rochester, New York
14445. The Company is to be
managed by one or more managers,
No member of the Company shall be
liable in their capacity as members of
the Company for debts, obligations or
liabilities of the Company. No
member of the Company, solely by
reason of being a member, is an agent
of the Company for the purpose of its
business, and no member shall have
the authority to act for the Company
solely by virtue of being a member,
Purpose/character of the Company:
any and all lawful acti vities.
11697181 2-11-1925;3-4-11-18-6¢

The Powers Building ¢ 16 West Main Street Rochester, NY 14614 » (585) 232-6920 @mm

http:/iwww.nydailyrecord.com TOweR



s e

JoS”

CERTIFICATE OF PUBLICATION
OF

NORTHSAL HOLDINGS LLC

Under Section 206 of the Limited Liability Company Law

Filed by: | l c C

Phillips Lytle LLP
1400 First Federal Plaza

Rochester, New York 14614 STATE OF NEW YORK !
Phone No.: (585) 238-2000 DEP A RTMENT OF STATE
| FILED APR 19 2019

TAX$ am——
BY: {VVW\ -




(" ("

im IRS CEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY
INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE
CINCINNATI OH 45999-0023

Date of this notice: 03-13-2019

Employer Identification Number:
83-3932546

Form: SS-4

Number of this notice: CP 575 B
NORTHSAL HOLDINGS LLC
JOEN F SEBASTIAN MBR
25 BRADFORD HILL RD For assistance you may call us at:
FAIRPORT, NY 14450 1-800-829-4933

IF YOU WRITE, ATTACH THE
STUB AT THE END OF THIS NOTICE.

WE ASSIGNED YOU AN EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER

Thank you for applying for an Employer Identification Number (EIN). We assigned you
EIN 83-3932546. This EIN will identify you, your business accounts, tax returns, and
documents, even if you have no employees. Please keep this notice in your permanent
records.

When filing tax documents, payments, and related correspondence, it is very important
that you use your EIN and complete name and address exactly as shown above. Any variation
may cause a delay in processing, result in incorrect information in your account, or even
cause you to be assigned more than one EIN. If the information is not correct as shown
above, please make the correction using the attached tear off stub and return it to us.

Based on the information received from you or your representative, you must file
the following form(s) by the date(s) shown.

Form 1065 03/15/2020

If you have questions about the form(s) or the due date(s) shown, you can call us at
the phone number or write to us at the address shown at the top of this notice. If you
need help in determining your annual accounting period (tax year), see Publication 538,
Accounting Periods and Methods.

We assigned you a tax classification based on information obtained from you or your
representative. It is not a legal determination of your tax classification, and is not
binding on the IRS. If you want a legal determination of your tax classification, you may
request a private letter ruling from the IRS under the guidelines in Revenue Procedure
2004-1, 2004-1 I.R.B. 1 (or superseding Revenue Procedure for the year at issue). Note:
Certain tax classification elections can be requested by filing Form 8832, Entity
Classification Election. See Form 8832 and its instructions for additional information.

A limited liability company (LLC) may file Form 8832, Entity Classification
Election, and elect to be classified as an association taxable as a corporation. If
the LLC is eligible to be treated as a corporation that meets certain tests and it
will be electing S corporation status, it must timely f£ile Form 2553, Election by a
Small Business Corporation. The LLC will be treated as a corporation as of the
effective date of the S corporation election and does not need to file Form 8832.

To obtain tax forms and publications, including those referenced in this notice,
visit our Web site at www.,irs.gov., If you do not have access to the Internet, call
1-800-829~3676 (TTY/TDD 1-800-829-4059) or visit your local IRS office.



(IRS USE ONLY) 575B 03-13-2019 NORT B 99999938999 SsS-4

IMPORTANT REMINDERS:
* Keep a copy of this notice in your permanent records., This notice is issued only
one time and the IRS will not be able to generate a duplicate copy for you. You
may give a copy of this document to anyone asking for proof of your EIN.

* Use this EIN and your name exactly as they appear at the top of this notice on all
your federal tax forms.

* Refer to this EIN on your tax~related correspondence and documents.

If you have questions about your EIN, you can call us at the phone number or write to
us at the address shown at the top of this notice. If you write, please tear off the stub
at the bottom of this notice and send it along with your letter. If you do not need to
write us, do not complete and return the stub.

Your name control associated with this EIN is NORT. You will need to provide this
information, along with your EIN, if you file your returns electronically.

Thank you for your cooperation.

Keep this part for your records. CP 575 B (Rev. 7-2007)

Return this part with any correspondence
50 we may identify your account. Please CP 575 B
correct any errors in your name or address.

9999999999

Your Telephone Number Best Time to Call DATE OF THIS NOTICE: 03-13-2019
( ) - : EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER: 83~3932546

FORM: SS-4 NOBOD
INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE NORTHSAL HOLDINGS LLC
CINCINNATI - OH 45999~0023 JOHN F SEBASTIAN MBR

Amnnamamamirnimaninam 25 BRADFORD HILL RD
FAIRPORT, NY 14450



;

PhillipsLytle LLP

Via E-Mail and PDQ Delivery December 11, 2025

Town Board

Town of Pittsford

11 South Main Street
Pittsford, NY 14534

Board of Trustees

Town/ Village of East Rochester
317 Main Street, Suite 2032

East Rochester, NY 14445

Re:  Petition for the Annexation of Territory from the Town of Pittsford, County of
Monroe, State of New York to the Town/Village of East Rochester, County of
Monroe, State of New York

Dear Members of the Town Board of the Town of Pittsford and the Board of Trustees of
the Town/ Village of East Rochester:

We represent Northside Salvage Yard Inc. and Northsal Holdings LLC (collectively,
“Northside Salvage”) with respect to the abovementioned Petition for the Annexation
of Territory from the Town of Pittsford to the Town/ Village of East Rochester (the
“Petition”), pursuant to the provisions of General Municipal Law Article 17. The
Petition attached hereto requests the annexation of certain real property currently
situated in the Town of Pittsford and adjoining the territory of the Town/ Village of East
Rochester (the “Territory”). The subject properties comprising the Territory are
identified on the official tax map of the Town of Pittsford and in the Petition as follows:

Owner Address Tax Parcel No.
Northside Salvage Yard Inc. 956 Linden Ave 139.13-2-3
Northside Salvage Yard Inc. 954 Linden Ave 139.13-2-2
Northside Salvage Yard Inc. 952 Linden Ave 139.13-2-1
Northsal Holdings LLC 946 Linden Ave 138.16-1-6
Northsal Holdings LLC 944 Linden Ave 138.16-1-7

ATTORNEYS AT Law

ANTHONY J. IACCHETTA, PARTNER DIRECT 585 238 2069 AIACCHETTA@PHILLIPSLYTLE.GOM

100 S CLINTON AVENUE SUITE 2900 ROCHESTER, NEw YORK 14604-1846 PHoNE 585 238 2000 Fax 585 232 3141

NEW YORK: ALBANY, BUFFALO, CHAUTAUQUA, GARDEN CITY, NEW YORK, ROCHESTER | CHicAGO, IL | WASHINGTON, DC | CANADA: WATERLOO REGION | PHILLIPSLYTLE.COM



IrEll

Members of the Town of Pittsford
Town Board and Town/Village of
East Rochester Board of Trustees December 11, 2025

Page 2

As described above and in the Petition, the Territory is currently vacant, uninhabited
and wholly owned by Northside Salvage. Consistent with General Municipal Law §
703, the attached Petition provides a legal description of the Territory and is attested by
John P. Sebastian in his capacity as (a) a shareholder, director and officer of Northside
Salvage Yard Inc. and (b) a member and manager of Northsal Holdings LLC. The
proposed annexation is supported by the laws of the State of New York and will serve
to benefit the Town of Pittsford and the Town/ Village of East Rochester, as evidenced
by the letter of support provided by the Town/ Village of East Rochester and annexed to
the Petition.

Pursuant to General Municipal Law § 704(1), we respectfully request that the Town
Board of the Town of Pittsford and Board of Trustees of the Town/ Village of East
Rochester coordinate to publish notice of a joint hearing on the proposed annexation
within twenty (20) days after receipt of this Petition, to be held not more than forty (40)
days after publication of said notice.

Please do not hesitate to contact the undersigned or LandTech Surveying and Planning,
PLLC with any questions regarding the Petition.

Very truly yours,

Phillips Lytle LLP

By (/L\fﬁ&\@wu\q &O& Q&\kokkl@

Anthony J. lacchetta

AJl
Enclosures



	dc1e7193-9e96-4064-91fb-6903328a8ffb.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Adj Use Plan



